
PO:S.T EVERGLADES F'R.A..NOHISE APPLIOATION 

An application will not be deemed complete and ready for processilig until all required documents and fees are 
received. 

A separate appllcatiop must be filed for each type of franchise applied for. 
FRANCJ-DSE TYPE '' 1 

'1 'i/1 'f ;?q 
CHECKONE D S'fEAMSffiPABMN't~ LiD STEVEDORE 

D CARGO HANDLER D TUGBOAT& TOWlNG D VESSELBUNKERINO 

D VESSELOILYWASTEREMOVALDVBSSBLSANITARYWASTEWATERREMOVAL 

D MARINE TERMINAL SECURITY 

Fffi.EARMS CARRYING SECURITY PF:RSONNEl, 

~ MARINE TERMINAL SECURITY 

NON-FIREARMS CARRYING SECURITY PERSONNEL 

Note: Applicant Is the legal entity applying for the franchise. If the Applicant Is g1·anted the fi•anchise, it will be 
the named franchisee. All Information contained in this application shall apply only to the Applicant, and not to 
any parent, affiliate, or subsidiary entities. 

Applicant's 
Name SOS Security LLC 

(Nome as ii appears on the certificate of incorporation, charter, or other legal documentation as applicable, evidencing the 
legal formation oflhe Applicant) · 

Applicant>s Business Address 6360 NW 5th Way, Ft. Lauderdale, FL 33309 
Number/ Street City/State(lip 

Phone# (561 ) 939-1300 Ewmail addressrdiaz@sossecurity.com 

Fax#: (561 )~9=39~-=13~0~1 ______ _ 

Name of the person authorized to bind the Applicant (This pel'son's signature must appea1· on Page 
13.) . 

Name Rodolfo (Rudy) Diaz 

Title SVP - Regio11al Director 

Business Address 6360 NW 5ih Way, Ft. Lauderdale, FL 33309 
Number/ Street City/Slate/lip 

Phone #.(561 )'"'"'93 ...... 9-=-1 ..... 3 ...... 00 ________ _ E-mail address rdiaz@sossecurity.com 

Fax #: (561 ).:c...;:93a..:;..9--=-1=-30=-aal'---_ _ ___ _ 

Provide the Name and Contact Information of Applicant's Representative to whom q\1estions about 
this application are to be directed (if different from the person authorized to bind the Applicant): 

Representative's Name ..,,R=o=b:..::e=rt:...,(R~o=b.,<.) ..:.;M=o=1=·is=o=n,.._ ______________ _ 

Representative's Title Regional Vice President - Florida 

Representative's Business Address 6360 NW 5111 Way. Ft. Lauderdale, FL .33309 
Number/ Street City/State/lip 

Representative's Phone# (5 6 1 )"""'9-=3~9--=-l=-30"'"'0=---------

Representative's E-mail address nnorison@sossecurity.com 

Representative's Fax#: ( 561)_9_3-9-_13_0_1 ________ . 
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PLEASE COMPLETE THIS APPLICATION AND LABEL ALL REQUIRED BACKUP DOCUMENTATION 

TO CLEARLY IDENTIFY THE SECTION OF THE APPLICATION TO WHICH THE DOCUl\.lENTATION 

APPLIES (I.E .... , SECTION A, n, c, etc.). 

Section A 
1. List the name(s) of Applicant's ,officers, including, CEO, COO, CFO, director(s), member(s), 

partner(s), shareholder(s), principal(s), employee(s), agents, and local representative(s) active in 
the management of the Applicant. 

Officers: 
Title CPP. CIPM-Chairman and CEO 
First Name Edward Middle Name B ~----------
Last Name Silverman -==:....:...====---------
Business Street Address 1915 Route 46 East ~--~--~-----------------
City, State, Zip Code Parsippany, NJ 07054 
Phone Number (973)-'-40=2=---=66"-'0c.;cO______ Fax Number (_) ______ _ 
Email Address esilverman @ sossecurity.com 

Title President 
First Name Kenneth Middle Name M ===-==---------- ~~---------
Last Name """"F...:.:is=h=e:...r _________ _ 
Business Street Address 1915 Route 46 East ~~~~~~~-----------------
City, State, Zip Code Parsippany. NJ 07054 
Phone Number ( 973)~40~2~-~66~0~0______ Fax Number (_). ______ _ 
Email Address kfisher @ sossecurity.com 

Title CFO 
First Name ~T=ho=m=as:<..-_________ Middle Name __________ _ 
Last Name Gustafson --=c===="---------
B us in es s Street Address 1915 Route 46 East --=..c.-="'-==:...-..=..c"--==-----------------
C i ty, State, Zip Code Parsippany, NJ 07054 
Phone Number ( 973)---'4=0=-2-""""6-"-60~0______ Fax Number (_) _____ _ 
Email Address tgustafson @ sossecurity.com 

Title ------------------------
First Name _____________ Middle Name __________ _ 
Last Name ------------
Business Street Address ------------------------
City, State, Zip Code------~----------------
Phone Number(_) _________ _ Fax Number (_) ______ _ 
Email Address ___________ @, _________ _ 

Attach additional sheets ifnecessai·y. 

2 RESUMES: Provide a resume for each officer, director, member, partner, shareholder, principal, 
employee, agent, and local representative(s) active in the management of the Applicant, as listed 
above. 
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Section B 
1. Place checkmark to describe the Applicant: 

( ) Sole Proprietorship ( ) Corporation ( ) Partnership ( ) Joint Venture ( X) Limited Liability Company 

2. Provide copies of the documents filed at the time the Applicant was formed including Articles of 
Incorporation (if a corporation); Articles of Organization (if an LLC); or Certificate of Limited 
Partnership or Limited Liability Limited Partnership (if a pmtnership). If the Applicant was not 
formed in the State of Florida, provide a copy of the documents demonstrating that the 
Applicant is authorized to conduct business in the State of Florida. 

Section C 
1. Has there been any change in the ownership of the Applicant within the last five (5) years? (e.g., 

any transfer of interest to another pmty) 
Yes_ No.x_ If "Yes," please provide details in the space provided. Attach additional sheets 
if necessary. 

2. Has there been any name change of the Applicant or has the Applicant operated under a 
different name within the last five (5) years? 
Yes_ No.x_ If "Yes," please provide details in the space provided, including: Prior name(s) 
and Date of name change(s) filed with the State of Florida's Division of Corporations or other 
applicable state agency. Attach additional sheets if necessary. 

3. Has there been any change in the officers, directors, executives, partners, shareholders, or 
members of the Applicant within the past five (5) years? 
Yes_ No.x_ If "Yes,U please provide details in the space provided, including: 
Prior officers, directors, executives, pa1tners, shareholders, members 
Name(s) _____________________ _ 

New officers, directors, executives, pai1ners, shareholders, members 
Name(s) _____________________ _ 
Also supply documentation evidencing the changes including resolution or minutes appointing 
new officers, list of new principals with titles and contact inf01mation, and effective date of 
changes. Attach additional sheets if necessary. 

Section D 
Provide copies of all fictitious name registrations filed by the Applicant with the State of Florida's 
Division of Corporations or other State agencies. If none, indicate ''None" ~ 
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Section E 
1. Has the Applicant acquired another business entity within the last five (5) years? 

Yes_ No..K_ If "Yes," please provide the full legal name of any business entity which the 
Applicant acquired during the last five (5) years which engaged in a similar business activity as 
the business activity which is the subject of this Po1t Everglades Franchise Application. 
If none, indicate "None" None 

2. Indicate in the space provided the date of the acquisition and whether the acquisition was by a 
stock purchase orasset purchase and whether the Applicant herein is relying on the background 
and history of the acquired firm's officers, managers, employees and/or the acquired firm's 
business reputation in the industiy to describe the Applicant's experience or previous business 
history. Attach additional sheets if necessary. 

3. Has the Applicant been acquired by another business entity within the last five (5) years? 
·Yes_ No lL If "Yes," provide the full legal name of any business entity which acquired the 
Applicant during the last five (5) years which engaged in a similar business activity as the 
business activity which is the subject of this Po1i Everglades Franchise Application. 
If none, indicate "None" None 

4. Indicate in the space provided the date of the acquisition and whether the acquisition was by a 
stock purchase or asset purchase and whether the Applicant herein is relying on the background 
and history of the parent firm,·s officers, managers, employees and/or the parent firm's business 
reputation in the industiy to describe the Applicant's experience or previous business history. 
Attach additional sheets if necessary. 

Section F 
Provide the Applicant's previous business history, including length of time in the same or similar 
business activities as planned at Port Everglades. 

Section G 
1. Provide a list of the Applicant's current managerial employees, including supervisors, 

superintendents, and forepersons. 

2 List the previous work history/experience of the Applicant's cmTent managerial employees, 
including their active involvement in seaports and length of time in the same or similar business 
activities as planned at Port Everglades. 
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Section H 
List all seapmis, including Port Everglades (if application is for renewal), where the Applicant is 
currently perfom1ing the services/operation which is the subject of this Franchise application. l!ll 
this form for each seaport listed. Photocopy additional pages as needed (gue page for each 
seaport listed}, 

If none, state "None''-=~-'-'~o=ne='-------~ 

Seap01t ______________ Number of Years Operating at this Seap01t __ _ 

List below all of the Applicant's Clients for which it provides services at the seaport listed above. 

Client Name (Company) 
Number of Years Applicant has Provided 

Services to this Client 
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Section I 
l. Provide a description of all past (within the last five (5) years) and pending litigation and legal 

claims where the Applicant is a named party, whether in the State of Florida or in another 
jurisdiction, involving allegations that Applicant has violated or otherwise failed to comply with 
environmental laws, rules, or regulations or committed a public entity crime as defined by 
Chapter 287, Florida Statutes, or theft-related crime such as fraud, bribery, smuggling, 
embezzlement or misappropriation of funds or acts of moral turpitude, meaning conduct or acts 
that tend to degrade persons in society or ridicule public morals. 

The description must include all of the following: 
a) The case title and docket number 
b) The name and location of the court before which it is pending or was heard 
c) The identification of all parties to the litigation 
d) General nature of all claims being made 
If none, indicate ''None" None 

~~~~--

2. Indicate whether in the last five (5) years the Applicant or an officer, director, executive, partner, 
or a shareholder, employee or agent who is or was ( during the time period in which the illegal 
conduct or activity took place) active in the management of the Applicant was charged, indicted, 
found guilty or convicted of illegal conduct or activity (with or without an adjudication of guilt) 
as a result of a jury verdict, nonjury trial, entry of a plea of guilty or nolo contendere where the 
illegal conduct or activity (1) is considered to be a public entity crime as defined by Chapter 
287, Florida Statutes, as amended from time to time, or (2) is customarily considered to be a 
white-collar crime or theft-related crime such as fraud, smuggling, bribery, embezzlement, or 
misappropriation of funds, etc. or (3) results in a felony conviction where the crime is directly 
related to the business activities for which the franchise is sought. 

Yes_NoX 

If you responded "Yes," please provide all of the following information for each indictment, 
charge, or conviction: 
a) A description of the case style and docket number 
b) The nature of the charge or indictment 
c) Date of the charge or indictment . 
d) Location of the comt before which the proceeding is pending or was heard 
e) The disposition (e.g., convicted, acquitted, dismissed, etc.) 
t) Any sentence imposed 
g) Any evidence which the County (in its discretion) may detetmine that the Applicant and/or 

person found guilty or convicted of illegal conduct or activity has conducted itself, himself or 
herself in a manner as to wan·ant the granting or renewal of the franchise. 

Section J 
The Applicant must provide a cunent ce1tificate(s) of insurance. Franchise insurance requirements 
are determined by Broward County's Risk Management Division and are contained in the Port 
Everglades Tariff No. 12 as amended, revised or reissued from time to time. The P01t Everglades 
Tariff is contained in the Broward County Administrative Code, Chapter 42, and is available for 
inspection on line at: http://www.p01teverglades.net/development/tariff. 
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Section K 
l. The Applicant must provide its most recent audited or reviewed financial statements prepared in 

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, or other documents and info1mation 
which demonstrate the Applicant's creditworthiness, financial responsibility, and resources, 
which the Port will consider in evaluating the Applicant's financial responsibility. 

2. Has the Applicant or entity acquired by Applicant ( discussed in Section E herein) sought relief 
under any provision of the Federal Bankrnptcy Code or under any state insolvency law filed by 
or against it within the last five (5) year period? 
Yes_No_x_ 

If "Yes," please provide the following information for each bankrnptcy or insolvency 
proceeding: 
a) Date petition was filed or relief sought 
b) Title of case and docket number 
c) Name and address of court or agency 
d) Nature of judgment or relief 
e) Date entered 

3. Has any receiver, fiscal agent, trustee, reorganization trustee, or similar officer been appointed 
in the last five (5) year period by a court for the business or property of the Applicant? 
Yes_No_x_ 
If "Yes," please provide the following information for each appointment: 
a) Name of person appointed 
b) Date appointed 
c) Name and address of court 
d) Reason for appointment 

4. Has any receiver, fiscal agent, trnstee, reorganization trustee, or similar officer been appointed 
in the last five (5) year period by a comt for any entity, business, or prope1ty acquired by the 
Applicant? 
Yes_No_x_ 
If 11 Y es," plea·se provide the following information for each appointment: 
a) Name of person appointed 
b) Date appointed 
c) Name and address of comt 
d) Reason for appointment 

Section L 
List four (4) credit references for the Applicant, one of which must be a bank. Use this format: 

Name of Reference JP Morgan Chase Bank. Nature ofBusiness-=B=a=nk=in""g,,__ __ _ 
Contact Name Pamela Cyran Title Assistant Vice President 
Legal Business Street Address -°'6=9=5-=R=o'-"u=te"--4_,_6"---'-W,_,e=s.:...t ______________ _ 
City, State, Zip Code -=F_,,a=ir=fi=el=d"'-N"-'-"-J_,0'-!.7--"'0_,,_04_,__ _______________ _ 
Phone Number ( 973 )._,4=39"'--=SOC-'4=-6 ___ _ 
(Provide on a separate sheet.) 
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Section M 
l. Security: Pursuant to Port Everglades Tariff 12, Item 960, all Franchisees are required to fomish 

an Indemnity and Payment Bond or Irrevocable Letter of Credit drawn on a U.S. bank in a 
format and an amount not less than $20,000 as required by Broward County Pm1 Everglades 
Department. 

2. Has the Applicant been denied a bond or letter of credit within the past five (5) years? 
Yes_No.x___ 
If "Yes," please provide a summary explanation in the space provided of why the Applicant 
was denied. Use additional sheets if necessary. 

Section N 
1. Provide a list and description of all equipment currently owned and/or leased by the Applicant 

and intended to be used by the Applicant for the type of service(s) intended to be performed at 
Pmt Everglades including the age, type of equipment and model number. 

2. Identify the type of fuel used for each piece of equipment. 

3. Indicate which equipment, if any, is to be domiciled at Port Everglades. 

4. Will all equipment operators be employees of the Applicant, on the payroll of the Applicant, 
with wages, taxes, benefits, and insurance paid by the Applicant? 

YesK__No __ 

If ''No," please explain in the space provided who will operate the equipment and pay wages, 
taxes, benefits, and insurance, if the franchise is granted. Use additional sheets if necessary. 

Section 0 
Provide a copy of the Applicant's cmTent Broward County Business Tax Receipt (formerly 
Occupational License). 

Section P 
1. Provide a copy of Applicant's safety program. 
2. Provide a copy of Applicant's substance abuse policy. 
3. Provide a copy of Applicant's employee job training program/policy. 
4. Provide info11nation regarding frequency of training. 
5. Include equipment operator certificates, if any. 
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Section Q 

1. Has the Applicant received within the past five (5) years or does the Applicant have pending any 
citations, notices of violations, warning notices, or fines from any federal, state, or local 
environmental regulatory agencies? 
Yes_No]L__ 

2. Has the Applicant received within the past five (5) years or does the Applicant have pending any 
citations, notices of violations, waining notices, or civil penalties from the U.S. Coast Guard? 
Yes_NolL._ 

3. Has the Applicant received within the past five (5) years or does the Applicant have pending any 
citations, notices of violations, warning notices, or fines from the Occupational Safety and 
Health Administration? 
Yes_No]L__ 

If you responded "Yes11 to any of this section's questions 1, 2, or 3 above, please provide a detailed 
summary for each question containing the following infmmation: 
a) Name and address of the agency issuing the citation or notice 
b) Date of the notice 
c) Nature of the violation 
d) Copies of the infraction notice(s) from the agency 
e) Disposition of case 
f) Amount of fines, if any 
g) Conective action taken 
Attach copies of all citations, notices of violations, warning notices, civil penalties and fines issued 
by local, state, and federal regulatory agencies, all related correspondence, and proof of payment of 
fines. 

4. Provide a statement (and/or documentation) which describes the Applicant's commitment to 
environmental protection, environmental maintenance, and environmental enhancement in the 
Port. 

Section R 
Provide written evidence of Applicant's ability to promote and develop growth in the business 
activities, projects or facilities of Port Everglades through its provision of the services (i.e., 
stevedore, cargo handler or steamship agent) it seeks to perfmm at Port Everglades. For first-time 
applicants (stevedore, cargo handler and steamship agent), the written evidence must demonstrate 
Applicant's ability to attract and retain new business such that, Broward County may determine in 
its discretion that the franchise is iri the best interests of the operation ang promotion of the port 
and harbor facilities. The te1m "new business" is defined in Chapter 32, Part II of the Broward 
County Administrative Code as may be amended from time to time. 
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If yon have checked an Applicant box for VESSEL BUNKERING, VESSEL OILY WASTE REMOVAL, 
VESSEL SANITARY WASTE WATER REMOVAL, OR MARINE TERMINAL SECURITY, then the 
following additional information is required: 

D VESSEL BUNKERING 

Section T- A Letter of Adequacy from the U.S. Coast Guard and a copy of the applicant's operations 
manual approved by the U.S. Coast Guard. 
Section V- A copy of the applicant's Oil Spill Contingency Plan for Marine Transpo1tation Related 
Facilities approved by the U.S. Coast Guard. 
Section W- A Terminal Facility Discharge Prevention and Response Cettificate with a copy of an approved 
Oil Spill Contingency Plan from the Florida Dept. of Environmental Protection. 
Section Z- An approved Discharge Cleanup Organization Certificate from the Florida Dept. of 
Environmental Protection which has been issued to the applicant or to its cleanup contractor with a copy of 
the cleanup contract showing the expiration date. 

D VESSEL OILY WASTE REMOVAL 

Section S - Ce1tificate of Adequacy in compliance with the Directives of MARPOL 73/75 and 33 CFR 158, 
if applicable. 
Section T- A Letter of Adequacy from the U.S. Coast Guard and a copy of the Applicant's operations 
manual approved by the U.S. Coast Guard. 
Section U- A Waste Transpotter License from the Broward County Environmental Protection Depattment 
identifying the nature of the discarded hazardous (or non-hazardous) material to be transpmted. 
Section V- A copy of the Applicant's Oil Spill Contingency Plan for Marine Transpmtation Related 
Facilities approved by the U.S. Coast Guard. 
Section W- A Terminal Facility Discharge Prevention and Response Certificate with a copy of an approved 
Oil Spill Contingency Plan from the Florida Dept. of Environmental Protection. 
Section X- A Used Oil Collector, Transporter, and Recycler Ce1tificate from the Florida Dept. of 
Environmental Protection. 
Section Y- An Identification Ce1tificate from the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency. 
Section Z- An approved Discharge Cleanup Organization Cettificate from the Florida Dept. of 
Environmental Protection which has been issued to the Applicant or to its cleanup contractor with a copy of 
the cleanup contmct showing the expiration date. 

D VESSEL SANITARY WASTE WATER REMOVAL 

Section U- A Waste Transpo1ter License from the Broward County Environmental Protection Depattment 
identifying the nature of the discarded hazardous (or non-hazardous) material to be transp01ted. 
Section Zl-A copy of the Applicant's operations manual. 
Section Z2- A Septage Receiving Facility Waste Hauler Discharge Permit from the Broward County Water 
and Wastewater Services Operations Division. 

D MARINE TERMINAL SECURITY 

Section N1- A list of all metal detection devices, walk-through and hand held, as well as all luggage and 
canyon x-ray machines owned or leased, to be used or domiciled at Port Everglades. Listing must include 
brand name and model. 
Section N2- A copy of all manufacturers recommended service intervals and name of 
company contracted to provide such services on all aforementioned equipment. 
Section N3- A description of cul1'ent method employed to assure all equipment is properly 
calibrated and functioning. 
Section N4- current training requirements and training syllabus for employees operating 
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x-ray equipment. Highlight emphasis on weapon and contraband identification. 
Include equipment operator ce1iificates, if any. 
Section 01- Provide copies of all local, state and federal licenses, including: 
a. A copy of the Applicant's State of Florida Business License. 
b. A copy of security agency's Manager's "M" or "MB" License and a copy of the security 
agency's "B" or "BB" License issued by the Florida Depmiment of Agriculture and Consumer 
Services. 
Section P3- SECURITY GUARDS/ SUPERVISORS 
a. Provide Applicant's background requirements, education, training etc., for personnel hired as 
security guards. 
h Provide historic annual turnover ratio for security guards. 
c. Provide a copy of Applicant's job training program/policy including a copy of training 
curriculum and copies of all manuals and take-home materials made available to security guards. 
Include information regarding frequency of training. 
d Provide background requirements, experience, licensing and any and all advanced training 
provided to supervisory personnel. 
e Provide present policy for individual communication devices either required of security guards 
or supplied by the employer. 
f Provide procurement criteria and source as well as Applicant's ce1iification requirements for K-9 
workforce. 
g Provide information on the number of security guards / supervisors currently employed or 
expected to be employed to provide security services at Po1t Everglades. 

Supervisors ______ _ 
Class D Guards, _____ _ 
Class G Guards _____ _ 
K-9 Handlers 
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Port Everglades Tariff 12 
References to the Port Everglades Tariff 12 as amended or reissued: http://www.portevergladcs.net/development/tariff 

Application Fees 
The following fees have been established for franchised businesses at Port 
Everglades. Initial processing fees are nonrefundable. A franchise is required 
for each category of business. 

Stevedore 
Initial processing fee, assignment fee, or reinstatement fee $11,000.00 
Annual Fee 
$ 4,000.00 
Cargo Handler 
Initial processing fee, assignment fee, or reinstatement fee $11,000.00 
Annual Fee 
$ 4,000.00 
Steamship Agent 
Initial processing fee, assignment fee, or reinstatement fee $ 
4,000.00 
Annual Fee 
$ 2,250.00 
Tugboat and Towing 
Initial processing fee, assignment fee, or reinstatement fee $ 26,000.00 
Annual Fee 
By Contract 
Vessel Bunkering, Vessel Oily Waste Removal, 
Vessel Sanitary Waste Wa,ter Removal 
Initial processing fee, assignment fee, or reinstatement fee$ 

Annual Fee 
$ 2,250.00 

4,000.00 

For first-time franchise Applicants, both the initial application fee and the 
annual fee must be submitted at time of application. Thereafter, annual 
franchise fees are due and payable each year on the franchise anniversary date, 
which is defined as the effective date of the franchise. 

Note: Check(s) should be made payable to: 
BROWARD COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS and be mailed with this application to: 
Port Everglades Business Administration Division 
1850 Eller Drive, Fort Lauderdale, FL 33316 

Required Public Hearing 
Staff review of this application will not commence until such time as all of the above requested infonnation and 
documentation has been provideµ and the franchise application has been detennined by staff to be complete. All of the 
above requested infonnation and Sections are required to be completed prior to the scheduling of the public hearing. 
Staff will reqttest that the Broward County Board of County Commissioners set a public hearing to consider the 
franchise application and hear comments from the public. The Applicant will be notified of the Public Hearing date and 
must plan to attend the Public Hearing. 
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By signing and submitting this application, Applicant certifies that all information 
provided in this application is true and correct. Applicant understands that providing 
false or misleading information on th.is applicahon may result in the franchise 
application being denied, or in instances of renewal, a franchise revoked. Applicant 
hereby waives any and all claims for any damages resulting to the Applicant from any 
disclosure or publication in any manner of any matel'ial or information acquired by 
Broward County during the franchise application process or during any inquiries, 
investigations, or public hearings. 

Applicant fu1ther understands that if there are any changes to the .i.nfonnation provided 
herein (subsequent to this application submission) or to its officers, dit'ectors, senior 
management personnel, or business operntion as stated in this application, Applicant 
agrees to provide such i1pdated infonnation to the P01t Eve{glades Department of 
Broward County, including the furnishing of the nam~s, addresses (and other 
infon:nation as r~quired ab?ve) wit~ r~spec.t to per~ons becoming associated 'Yith 
Applicant after Lts franchise apphcat1on is submitted, and any other teqmred 
documentation requested by Po1t Everglades Depa1t111ent staff as relating to the 
changes in the busmess operntion. This information must be submitted within ten (J 0) 
calendar days from the date of any change made by the Applicant. 

Applicant certifies that aU workers performing functions for Applicant who are subject 
to the Longshore and Harbor Workers' Act are covered by Longshore & Harbor 
Workers' Act, Jones Act Insurance, as required by federal law. 

Trus application and all related records are subject to Chapter 119, F.S., the Florida 
Public Records Act. 

By its execution of this application, Applicant acknowledges that it has read and 
understands the rules, regulations, terms and conditions of the franchise it is applying 
for as set forth in Chapter 32, Part 11, of the Broward County Administrative Code as 
amended, and agrees, should the franchise be granted by Broward County, to be legally 
bound and governed by all such rules, regulations, terms and conditions of the 
franchise as set faith in Chapter 32, Part II, of the Broward County Administrative 
Code as amended. 

The individual executing this application on behalf of the Applicant, personally 
wan·ants that s/he has the full legal authority to execute thls application and legally 
bind the Applicant 

1te Signed J ?' /U o. J 2 a! ,V 

~ n iJ 

Witness Signature (*Required*)=F--"=7"1-~--11'="~:._::._,::........::c...+-...,,Pf::;.,.----------­
Witness name-typed or printed--'-__.__-'-'"'-'WU::W.-"---'--C.;c..'-"-CL--1.=.....:,,<-~------

W it ness Signature (*Required *)_ ---1,,,,...1~~_!!_;.~~X..µ~:2::::::::::::::=::__ _____ _ 
Witness name-typed or printed ____ '-+--l"---r-1-i,<---+-.,_""-L-...L...0-~--1-----

If a franchise is granted, all official notices/co1rnspondence should be sent to: 

Name / 1.:. b /I,{_ 'D /\ , J o ,.,v Tit.le t/ /J ) Pf ,,( 4- I r <;J A ~ 
Address b:3bo J\J lu 5tf\ lNgj , R. lc1~0/.e'(Jq/~hone <:2fa.L) 939 · / 306 

I f(, ?330~ 
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June 19, 2018 

Broward County Florida 
Department of Port Everglades 
Business Administration Division 
Attn: Angela Osorno Belleme 
1850 Eller Drive 
Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33316-4201 
aosornobel leme@broward.org 

Re: SOS Security LLC Application - Requested Items 

Dear Ms. Osorno Belleme, 

SOS SECURITY LLC 

Further to your letter dated June 18, 2018, Page 13 - Signature, please let this letter serve as 
authorization for Mr. Rodolfo Diaz, Senior Vice President of SOS Security LLC, to legally bind 
the company as it relates to contractual obligations for security services at the new marine 
terminal at Port Everglades. 

Should you have any questions and/or require additional information, please feel free to contact 
me at kfisher@sossecurity.com and/or 973-270-2308. 

Very truly yours , 

SOS SECURITY LLC 

/~;1tJ~ 
Kenneth M. Fisher 
President 

KMF:mr 

cc: Rodolfo Diaz, SVP 

CORPORATE HEADQUARTERS 
One Security Plaza, 1915 Route 46 East, Parsippany, New Jersey 07054 

(973) 402-6600 · Fax: (973) 402-6262 · 1-800-SECURE-O 
www.sossecurity.com 
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'lJe[aware PAGE 1 

'Ifie :First State 

I, JEFFREY W. BULLOCK, SECRETARY OF STATE OF THE STATE OF 

DELAWARE, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THE ATTACHED IS A TRUE AND CORRECT 

COPY OF THE CERTIFICATE OF FORMATION OF "SOS SECURITY LLC", 

FILED IN THIS OFFICE ON THE ELEVENTH DAY OF OCTOBER, A.D. 2012, 

AT 12:28 O'CLOCK P.M. 

5226505 8100 

121119276 
You may verity this certificate online 
at corp.delaware.gov/authver,shtml 

Jeffrey W. Bullock, Secretary of State 
C. TION: 9910624 

DATE: 10-11-12 
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CER'rlFICA'TE OF FORMAnON 

OF 

SOS SECURITY LLC 

State of Delaware 
Seoreta.ry of State 

Division o:rCorporations 
Delivered 12:28 PM 10/11/2012 

FILED 12: 28 PM 10/11/2012 
SRV 121119276 - 5226505 FILE 

In compliance with the tequiretnents of Section 18-201 of the Delaware Limited Liability 
CotnpanyAct:, telat:ing to the fonnation of a limited liability company. the undersigned, desiring to 
form a funited liability company, heteby certifies that: 

1.. The name of the limited futbility cotnpany is: SOS SECURITY !LC. 

2. The address of the limited liability companys registered office is 2711 Centerville 
Road., Suite 400, Wilmington, New Castle County, Delawate 19808. The natne of its registered 
agent at such address is Corpo.tation Set:"\1ice Company. 

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, the undetsig:o.ed has executed this Certificate of 
Formation of SOS SECURITY U..C this 10th day of October, 2012. 

Name: Ken Fisher 
Title: AUTHORIZED SIGNOR 

112493.001 l 0/12243326v.1 
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SOS SECURITY LLC 

Edward B. Silvern1an, CPP, CIPM 

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer 

Mr. Silverman is the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of SOS Security LLC, where he oversees the 

company's strategic vision and growth through unique service offerings and strong client pminerships. CEO 

since 1972, he has led the company's transformation from a startup into a leading global security services 

provider, and fifth largest provider of security personnel in the United States. 

He attended the University of Maryland, John Jay College of Criminal Justice and received his Polygraph 

Examiner certification from the Backster School of Lie Detection in 1973. He is a licensed Private 

Investigator, a Certified Institutional Protection Ivlanager (CIPM), and has been a CPP, Certified Protection 

Professional, since 1986. 

A member of ASIS International since 1972, Mr. Silverman is an active voice in the security industry. He 

serves on the International Security Foundation (ISF) Steering Committee, and is a member of the Overseas 

Security Advisory Committee (OSAC), which is established under the authority of the U.S. Department of 

State. He is also a member of the International Security Management Association (ISMA), the World 

President's Organization (WPO) and the National Council of Investigation and Security Services (NCISS). 
'\ 

Previously, Mr. Silverman served as Chapter Chairman of New Jersey's Young President Organization (YPO). 

He is an honorary member of the Association of Former Agents of the Secret Service, an honor bestowed on 

him for his continued service, commitment and advocacy. 

CORPORATE HEADQUARTERS: 
1915 Route 46 East, Parsippany, NJ 07054 

Phone: (973) 402-6600 · Toll-Free: 1-800-SECURE-O 
www.sossecurity.com 
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SOS SECURITY LLC 

l(enneth M. Fisher 

Pres id en t 

:Mr. Fisher has over 30 years of financial, operations and general management experience 

working with public and private companies in a variety of industries. ~1Ir. Fisher has worked at 

SOS since 2003. He earned a B.A. Degree from The University of Ivlaryland and an M.B.E. from 

The University of California. Mr. Fisher is a Certified Public Accountant and a member of the 

American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and California's Society of CPA's. 

CORPORATE HEADQUARTERS: 
1915 Route 46 East, Parsippany, NJ 07054 

Phone: (973) 402-6600 · Toll-Free: 1-800-SECURE-O 
Yrww.sossecurity.com 
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Thmnas Gustafson 

Chief Finaucilll Officer 

tvlr. Gustafson has over 25 years of financial experience, which include public accounting, 

distribution and manufacturing. Mr. Gustafson holds a B.S. from the University of Scranton, is a 

Certified Public Accountant and a current member of both AI CPA and the Knights of Columbus. 

CORPORATE HEADQUARTERS: 
1915 Route 46 East, Parsippany, NJ 07054 

Phone: (973) 402-6600 · Toll-Free: 1-800-SECURE-O 
www.sossecurity.com 
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SO$ Security LLC 
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February 27, 2013 

Tom Gustafson 
53 Ramsey Ave. 
Ramsey, New Jersey 07466 
February 26, 201_3 

Re: Offei' ofEmployrµent at SOS Security LLC 

Dear Tom, 

SOS Security LLC is pleased to offer you the position of Clrief Financial Officer. We trust that your 
knowledge, ski.Us and experience will be among our most valuable assets. 

We are offering you a ·base salary of I $ vhfoh will be subject to deductions for taxe~ and 
other withholdings as required by law or policies of the company. 

In addition, you wHI receive the following benefits: 

• Bonus of\% of the Key Employee Incentive Compensation Plan; 
• Auto Allowance of •. 00 p~r month, or similar vehicle, along with gas card and insm·ance; 
• .Fi.fie.en (1.5) paid days off per year, in addition to seven (7) paid holidays and one ( 1) floating 

holiday; · 
• Full family medical coverage paid, by SOS Security LLC; 
• Blackberry and laptop for business use. 

Your-anticipated start date will be ~h 2-$, 29±3. ,(}rQ.. ,-L l...f'~ 'lr3 1) 

This letter is not an employment agreement or gu~rantee of future employment. As with all SOS 
entployees1 yoU1' employment is considered at-wifl and either party can terminate the employment 
relationship at any time without cause and with or without notice. You acknowledge that this 
employment offc,r letter represents the entire agreement between you and SOS Seourity LLC and that no· 
vel'bal or written agreements, promises, or representations that are not specifically stated in th:is 
employment offer letter, are or will be binding upon SOS Security LLC. 

If you ar~ in agreement with the above employment details, please sign below· and return this 
employment offer to the company. 

Sincerely yours, 
sqs Security LLC 

. ;;~/,! /1~~ 

Kenneth M. Fisher, 
President 

CO~flORATE HEADQUARTERS: 
1915 US Highway 46, P.O. Box 6373, Parslppany, NJ 07054 
(973)402-!3600 • Fax: (973)402-6262 • 1-800-SECURE-O 

www.sossecurlty.corn 
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sunbiz.org - Florida Department of State 

Florida Department of State 

Previous on List Next on List Return to List 
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MARILL SECURITY SERVICES 

Filing Information 
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1915 ROUTE 46 EAST 
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PALM BEACH 

1 

NONE 
NONE 

Owner Information 
SOS SECURITV LLC 
1915 ROUTE 46 EAST 
PARSIPPANY, NJ 07960 
FEI/EIN Number: 46-1 387054 
Document Number: M12000000063 

Document Images 
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REDIFINING GLOBAL SECURITY 
by Protecting People, Assets & Reputations 

SOS Security is the fifth largest security personnel company in the US and growing. 

A leading provider of security personnel and related services, SOS Security helps a broad range 
of clients in the corporate, government and high net worth sectors to protect their people, 
assets, and reputations. 

Our services extend beyond personnel and include executive protection and secure travel 
support to operations center set-up and support, event risk mitigation, intel ligence analysis and 
dedicated niche services sucl, as retail risk and theft prevention. 

• Founded in 1969, we are privately-owned, fami ly-operated, with approximately 70 offices in 
major metropoli tan areas throughout the U.S. 

• Backed by strong management teams, our 10,000 dedicated, highly-skilled staff have 
expertise in all key aspects of fixed site, emergency response and specia list services to 
support cl ient requirements. 

• As a boutique services provider, we work with each client to analyze procedures, examine 
vulnerabilities and tailor a plan that fits security and budget requirements, and adapt quickly 
to client, market and employee needs. 

• By integrating the best people, procedures and technology, we balance outstanding quality 
with competitive total costs of securi ty program ownership. 

• Through strategic alliances and acquisitions with like-minded international companies, we 
del iver the quality, innovation and service that has been our ca lling card since 1969. 

SOS Security I 3 (I) 
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® SOS SECURITY LEADERSHIP TEAM 

Edward B. Silverman, CPP, CIPM 

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer 

Eddie oversees the company's strategic vision and growth through unique 

service offerings and strong client partnerships. CEO since 1972, he has led the 

company's transformation from a startup into a leading global security services 
provider, and fifth largest provider of security personnel in the United States. 

He attended the University of Maryland, John Jay College of Criminal Justice and 

received his Polygraph Examiner certification frorn the Backster School of Lie 
Detection in 1973. He is a licensed Private Investigator, a Certified Institutional 

Protection Manager (CIPM), and has been a CPP, Certified Protection 

Professional , since 1986. 

A member of ASIS Internationa l since 1972, Eddie is an active voice in the 
security industry. He serves on the International Security Foundation Steering 

Committee and is a member of the Overseas Security Advisory Committee, 

which is established under the authority of the U.S. Department of State. He is 

also a member of the International Security Management Association, the World 
President's Organization (WPO) and the National Council of Investigation and 

Security Services (NCISS). 

Scott B. Alswang 

Executive Vice President, Government Liaison 

Afte r 20 yea rs in the Uni ted States Secret Service, Scott re tired as the assistant to the 

specia l agent in charge ot the New York offi ce. In his service he protec ted every U.S . 

president from Ronald Reagan to George W. Bush and conducted protective advances 

for almost every major foreign head of state that visited the United States of America. 

Scott began his career as a Police Offi cer in West Orange, New Jersey. He graduated 

from Will iam Paterson University with a B.S. in Public Safety Ad ministra tion and 

completed an M.A. in Cri mina l Justice at City University of New York's John Jay School 

of Crimina l Justice. 

® 36 I SOS Security 
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Marc Bognar, CPP 

Executive Vice President and Chief Security Officer 

With over 30 yea rs of security management experience, Marc has been instrumental in 

consulting, designing and implementing security solutions to Fortune 1000 compan ies 

both domestically and internationally. 

Marc is a past Regional Vice President for ASIS International, leading four Chapters which 

comprise over 1,500 security professionals in NJ and Eastern PA. He has also served 

as Chair of the ASIS International RVP Strategic Planning Committee, and is a member 

of ASIS International and the Society for Human Resource Management (SHRM). He is 

Board Certified in Security Management and is tri-lingual. He obtained a B.S. in Business 

Administration from Thomas Edison State College in New Jersey, and an M.B.A. specializing 

in Global Business Management from APU, West Virginia. He is also a graduate of the FBI 

Citizens Academy. 

Mick Chandrani 

Board Member 

Mick retired from American Express in 2016 after serving 15-years as the Senior Vice-President 

of Global Security, where he led a security program that encompassed physical security and 

protection of employees, corporate assets and facili ties, crisis management program, due 

diligence, executive protection, fraud investigations and proactive fraud prevention. 

Prior to American Express, Mick was the Special Agent in Charge of the New York 

Field Office of the United States Secret Service. The New York office is the largest and 

the busiest investigative office of the Service and a leader in electronic crimes. In his 

distinguished twenty-year career, Mick served in both domestic and overseas locations, 

includ ing assignments in Washington, D.C., where he served in leadership positions in 

headquarters and on the Presidentia l Protective Division. 

Rodolfo "Rudy" Diaz 

Senior Vice President/Regional Director, Florida and Latin America 

Prior to joining SOS Security, Rudy served as Head of Global Security for Globa l 

Foundries, a major semi-conductor enterprise operating across three con tinents. During 

his 25-year career he also held execu tive positions with Hewlett-Packard and Pinkerton 

Consu lting and Investigations. 

SOS Security I 37 
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Rudy served in the United States Marine Corps He holds a 8.A. in Criminology from 

Marquette University and is a member of the ASIS, Overseas Security Advisory Council. 

Domestic Security All iance Council, Northern California Regional Intelligence Center. and the 

Counter Terrorism Forum sponsored by NYPD. 

Lou Dilorenzo 

Senior Vice President Globa l Retail 

Lou brings more than 33 years of retail loss preven tion and private security experience to 

SOS Security, which incl udes major retailers such as Macy's, Lord & Taylor and T J Maxx. 

He specializes in crisis management. risk assessment, audi ti ng, investigations, training 

and physical security operations, and has helped priva te security clients implement 

better operationa l practices and training programs that enhance the level of security 

officers. Leveraging his extensive loss prevention background, Lou works side-by-side 

with many of our reta il accounts, such as Gucci, LVMH, Sak's Fifth Avenue, David 

Yurman, Fendi, Tiffany's, and many others. 

In 2009, and by request, Lou was a consultant for the 81st Academy Awards, where he 

helped with training and strategic deployment of all security officers, crowd control. and 

served as liaison with law enforcement on physical security exposures. Lou is a Charter 

Member of the Loss Prevention Foundation, and a member of the Loss Prevention 

Benevolent Fund committee. 

Christina "Chris" Duffey, CPP 

Senior Vice President/Regional Director, Midwest 

With more than 25 years of progressive experience in contract security management 

in the United States and Canada, Christina has extensive knowledge and experience in 

asset protection, guard force management. 

Christina is Board Certified in Security Management as a Certified Protection Professional 

(CPP) and in 2011 served as President of the Professional Certification Board with ASIS 

International, conclud ing a five-year term. She currently serves on the Board of Directors 

of ASIS as President-Elect. She graduated from DePaul University with a degree in 

Commerce as well as an Associate's Degree. 

Christina makes sign ifican t con tributions to the security industry through volunteer 

leadership, guest speaking and mentoring. She was the 2014 

recipien t of the ASIS Canada Ron Minion Security Pioneer Award. 
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Ken Fisher 

President 

Ken has over 30 years of financial, operations and general management experience working 

with public and private companies in a variety of industries. Mr. Fisher has worked at SOS 

since 2003. He earned a B.A. Degree from The University of Maryland and an M.B.E. from 

The University of California . Mr. Fisher is a Certified Public Accountant and a member of the 

American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and California's Society of CPA's. 

Barry Frank 

Executive Vice President and General Counsel 

Mr. Frank has been the Executive Vice President and General Counsel of SOS Security for 

over 30 years . He graduated from the University of Connecticut with a B.A. Degree and 

earned a J .D. Degree from Loyola University School of Law. He is a member of the New York 

and New Jersey Bar, a licensed Private Investigator, member of ASIS International and a 

former PBA attorney. 

John "J .J." Frazer 

Senior Vice President/ Regional Director, Mid-Atlantic 

J.J. oversees security operations in six states and the District of Columbia. Since 1998, 

Frazer was the Co-founder and President of New Horizon Security Services. Inc., which 

was recognized six consecutive years by Inc. Magazine as one of the fastest growing private 

businesses in America. 

He is a member of the Private Security Services Advisory Board, wh ich develops 

recommendations to shape Virginia Department of Crimina l Justice Services regulations. 

He holds a B.S. in Public Administration with a concentration on Cri mina l Justice from 

James Madison University, and an MBA with a concentration on Homeland Security from 

Northcentral University. 

Bob Larkin 

Executive Vice President, Global Retail 

After a lengthy career in security and operational management at Macy's, Bob founded 

Asset Protection Associates (APA) to assist retailers with shrink management and 

proactive solutions to increased sales and profitability. APA joined SOS Security in 

2014, and Bob joined the execu tive team to continue consu lting with reta ilers with large 

sca le organized retail crime, royalty assurance and profi t maximization for retailers with 

franchised based operations and security officer standards. 
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Notably, Bob provided for the retail operations consulting at the 1996 Summer Olympic 

Games in Atlanta, where he helped forecast physical security needs such as locking 

hardware, lighting, and CCTV requirements. He also assisted with crowd con trol 

management, crisis response planning, liaison with law enforcement on safety and 

terrorism-related incidents and training the security staff on emergency preparedness. 

Rosanne Manghisi 

Senior Vice President/Chief of Staff 

Roe is a retired Capta in from the New Jersey State Police and a law enforcement 

professiona l with over 26 yea rs of progressively responsible law enforcement experience. 

Her background reflects accomplishments in special operations. investigations, 

intelligence, undercover operations, security operations , training, policy and executive 

management. 

Prior to her retirement, Roe was a capta in in the Special Operations Section and 

Emergency Management Section of the Homeland Security Branch, served as Chief of 

Staff to the Superintendent. She is a graduate of the FBI Nationa l Academy and holds a 

B.A. in Criminal Justice from Seton Hall University and Thomas Ed ison State College. 

Joseph Martino 

Senior Vice President/Regional Director, Northeast 

Joe joined SOS Security in 2014. He has more than 20 years of experience in the 

security industry, specializing in security personnel management, client relations, 

disaster response plann ing, special operations, training. and executive protection. He 

holds a S.S. degree in Business Management from Iona College and is a member of 

ASIS Internationa l. 

Craig Matsumoto 

Vice President, Custom Risk Solutions 

Craig leads global loss prevention, asset protection and risk control strategies. Previously he 

was Managing Director of Loss Prevention at Protiviti Risk Consulting, which followed a 26-

year career serving as Director and Vice President of Loss Prevention and Audit for Mervyn's 

Department Stores, T.J. Maxx, and Reebok International, as well as President of Radius 

under the Creative Options umbrella, and Chief Operating Officer of LP Innovations. 

An engaging speaker and though t leader, Craig appeared in a "60 Minutes" segment 

exploring the impact of organized crime on the retail industry. He has also been 

actively involved with industry steering committees to set global norms for tagging 

standardization for RFID applications and more. He has led close persona l protection 

efforts for high-profile executives, international icons, celebrities and athletes. He 
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attended the University of Ca lifornia at Berkeley and Fresno Sta te University, and is a 

member of the National Retail Federation , Reta il Industry Leaders Association, Retail 

Council of Canada and ASIS. 

Kendra Parker 

Managing Director, Custom Risk Solutions 

Kendra helps ou r risk management and loss prevention clients implement business 

data in telligence solutions. In this role, she helps improve operational processes and 

supports critica l business strategies by managing the developmen t, implemen tation, and 

ma intenance of applications systems. 

With more than 25 years of experience in security and loss prevention, Kendra 

specialized in Mystery Shopping, includ ing regulations, best practices, concepts, KPI 

metrics and delivery. She works closely with clients to help define business processes 

and implement technica l solutions to manage critical company performance data and 

develop technical roadmaps. 

Kendra joined SOS Security from Macy's East, where she in corporate loss prevention. 

Her responsibi lities included field management, training, investiga tions, in terviewing and 

interrogation, inventory control , safety and risk management, in ternal case management 

and integrity shopping programs. She was recognized and awarded numerous times for 

her high-profile investigation success, and her ability to use her technica l skills to often 

uncover and resolve large company loss issues. 

Aaron Silverman 

Director, Business Intell igence 

Aaron began working in the private security industry over 15 years ag prior to attend ing 

Lehigh University where he received a B.S. Degree from the School of Business and 

Administration with dual degrees in Finance and Marketing. 

Aaron joined Credit Suisse immediately following undergraduate school working, 

working in the sales/ trad ing division for nearly seven years. He ran institutional fixed 

income sales desks in New York City, Chicago and London. While in London, where 

he oversaw business with counterparts throughout Europe and was responsible for 

specialized alternative fixed income product distri bution with pension funds, asset 

managers, hedge funds and various other institutions. Aaron rejoined SOS Security in 

2010, wl1ere he now serves as the Director of the Intelligence Division. In this role, he 

has developed services and solutions for clients related to business continuity, corporate 

resi lience, emergency response, global security operations center design/engineering & 

operations, tactical communications systems, enterprise technology/cyber secu ri ty, risk/ 
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vulnerab il ity assessments, intelligence/analytic program development, specia lized project 

management/planning & execut ion , as well as ad hoc security and strategic business 

engagements. 

Andrew Silverman 

Director of Special Services 

For more than 15 years, Andrew has been providing physical security services, executive 

protection and management and consulting to Fortune 1000 companies, as well as armed and 

unarmed security services to various U.S. Embassies and Consulates for the Department of 

State. Andrew helped SOS Security develop its full-service portfolio and Strategic Security Global 

Alliance partnerships with over a dozen firms worldwide. He has conducted executive protection 

details for former Heads of State including assignments for major events and disasters. 

He holds a bachelor's degree from Muhlenberg Col lege, is a licensed private investigator and 

security instructor. In addition, he is a member of the ASIS, the Overseas Security Advisory 

Council (OSAC), the Latin America Regional Council (LARC) and the Youth Adult Form -

Young & World's President Organization. 

Christopher N. Walsh 

Senior Vice President, Tra ining Director and Special Services 

After 25 years of law enforcement experience, Chris retired as a Patrol Division 

Commander Lieu tenant. With over 10 years of private security expe ri ence he currently 

holds Security Officer Instructor certifica tion in New York, New Jersey, Delaware and 

Connecticut. 

Chris received an M.Ed. Degree from Seton Hall University. He participates in nationa l 

security seminars at the US Army War College and was also the lead Instructor for the 

NJSACOP West Point Leadership and Command program. He has conducted and 

supervised protection deta ils for dign itaries and prominent individua ls in and out of 

the United States, as well as providing persona l executive protection for Fortune 500 

business executives traveling abroad. 

Rebekah Wells, CPP 

Senior Vice President/Regional Director, West Coast 

Rebekah brings more than 25 yea rs of private secur ity experience to SOS Security. She 

joined SOS Security from Allied Universa l Security Services, where she served as a Vice 

President of Opera tions in the Southwest Region. She also held executive posi tions 

with Guardsmark, LLC. Wells is a member of the ASIS International and has served as 

a Senior Regional Vice President. She holds a B.A. in Political Science from California 

State University, San Bernardino, and is a Cert ified Protection Professiona l {CPP) . 
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Christian West 
CEO/Founder 

Chri stian has been active in the executive protectio rn industry siflce the late 

1980s, when he worked for Danish musici9ns who re located to Hollywood . lJpon 

returning to Denmark, he fown ded his own EP company, wh ich he quickly grew 
into Scandinavia's largest, before it was acqui red by Secwritas. 

Christian founded AS Solution in 2003 , and again in 2009 followed his 

internatio,na l clients to the US, wlilere he is now based . Ara active member of 

ASIS and a leader in the cor~orate executive prntection ifldust ry, Christiari has 
personally planned and led high-profi le engagements in over 76 countries for 

a wioe variety of corporate and high net worth indlvi tl wa l clients, includ ing the 

international roadshow for the blggest I PO 11<1 history. 

Tommy Christensen 

Director of Operations 

Tommy is a seasoned, multi-lingual EP spec ialist with extensive global experience creating 

cl ient support programs and provid ing executive protection, threat and risk assessment, 

covert/counter and protective surveillance and logistics management to Fortune 100 

corporations, phi lanthropic orga nizations and individuals. Since he began his EP career 

in the 1990s, Tommy has worked in more than 60 countries across Western and Eastern 

Europe, the Middle East, Asia, Africa, South/Centra l and North America. 

An experienced protection operative and strategist, Tommy is intimately fami liar with al l 

aspects of EP operations, customer service, vendor management and administration. 

Jared Van Oriessche 

Director of Operations 

As Director of Operations, Jared Van Driessche is responsible for strategic leadership and 

oversight of all full-time embedded AS Solution operations worldwide. His role entails the 

cultivation, development and quali ty control of executive protection programs that adds value 

directly to the client. 
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Over the course of his long and diverse career, Jared has planned, executed and led close 

protection details for CEOs, dignitaries, heads of state, boards of directors, celebrities, media, 

and various public figures on more than 300 international trips to over 70 different countries. 

He has extensive international exposure, including the provision of close protection and 

threat assessment to clients in high-risk environments throughout Africa, Asia, Central 

America, South America, Europe, and the Middle East. 

Brian Jantzen 

Executive Vice President 

After leaving the US Marine Corps as a captain in tl1e early 1990s, Brian has pioneered 

corporate executive protection services internationally for Fortune 500 companies, high 

net worth families and NGOs. 

Brian has provided protection at the highest levels of corporate and philanthropic 

environments in over 35 countries. With his demonstrated ability to align security 

operations with both the client's organizational goals and personal preferences, Brian 

uses his strong relationship building, collaboration and project and vendor management 

expertise to create security solutions that deliver program efficiencies and customer 

satisfaction. Brian graduated from the University of Washington with a BA in Sociology 

and is the subject matter expert chair for the ASIS Executive Protection Council. 

Ray O'Hara 

Executive Vice President 

Prior to entering the corporate security sector in the late 1970s, Ray was a supervising 

detective for the Los Angeles Police Department. He led corporate security for 

Weyerhaeuser and GTE and headed Garda World Security Corporation's (formerly Vance) 

security consulting and investigations projects worldwide. 

Ray has served ASIS in numerous capacities: Chairman of the Board and President of 

the International Board of Directors; President of the Professional Certification Board; 

and Chair of the AS IS International Investigations Council. Board certified in security 

management by ASIS International, Ray is considered a risk and vulnerability expert, 

and is a sought-after consultant in business vulnerabilities, homeland security ini tiatives, 

terrorism and political threats . 
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Page 2, Section A.1 - Officers. Please provide documentation for the appointment of Thomas 
Gustafson as Chief Financial Officer. 

Please see Attachment A, which reflects a redacted signed copy of Mr. Gustafson's Offer 
letter from SOS Security. Please advise if further information is required. 

Page 4, Section F - Business History. Describe the company's previous business history, 
including length of time providing marine terminal security services. 

Please see Attachment B, SOS' Statement of Capabilities brochure. Please advise if 
further information is required. 

Page 51 Section H - Ports of Service. You stated in the application that SOS Security LLC, 
does not provide security services at any other port. If this is not correct, please provide the 
names of the ports where you provide security services and the names of clients and length of 
service. 

SOS apologies for the incorrect statement. SOS has provided (for less than one year) 
security services at the following ports for: 

• Crowley Logistics - 1163 Talleyrand Ave., Jacksonville, Florida 32206 
• Crowley Logistics - Petty's Island, 361

h Street & Delaware River, Pennsauken, NJ 
08110 

• SpaceX - 2700 Miner Street, San Pedro, CA 90731 
• SpaceX - 801 Reeves Avenue, San Pedro, CA 90731 

Page 61 Section J - Insurance Certificate. The Certificate of Insurance provided expired on 
June 4, 2018. Please provide an updated certificate. 

Please see Attachment C. This is SOS' Evidence of Insurance COi. The first is an 
extention COi (through June 8, 2018) as well as the renewal certificate (June 8, 2018-
June 4, 2019). 

Page 81 Section P.1 - Safety Program. Please provide a copy of your safety manual. 

Please see Attachment D. 

Page 101 Section N.1, 2, 3, & 4 - Security Equipment. Please provide a list of all security 
equipment, a copy of all manufacturers recommended service intervals and name of company 
contracted to provide services on equipment's and include description of current method to 
assure all equipment's are properly calibrated and functioning. If your company operates an x­
ray equipment, please list training requirements and training syllabus for employees. Provide 
Equipment Operator certificates, if any. If you do not use security equipment as described in 
this section, please indicate "None". 

None. 
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ACORD® CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE I 
DATE (MM/DD/YYYY) 

~ 6/8/2018 

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS 
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES 
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED 
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. 

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed. 
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on 
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s). 

PRODUCER ~2~l~cT Kevin Connelly 
The Graham Company 

rA~gN,;o Exll: 215-567-6300 I rie~ Nol: 215-525-0235 The Graham Building 
1 Penn Square West ~t1D~~ss: CONNELLY UNIT@arahamco.com 
Philadelphia PA 19102 INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC# 

INSURER A : United States Fire Ins Co 21113 
INSURED SOSSECU-01 INSURER B: Nat'I Union Fire of Pitts, PA 19445 
SOS Security LLC 

INSURER c: Property & Casualty Insurance Companv of Hartford 1915 US Highway 46 
Parsippany, NJ 07054-1300 INSURER D : Berkshire Hathaway 20044 

INSURER E : Endurance American Specialty 41718 

INSURER F: 

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER· 682163084 REVISION NUMBER: 
THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD 
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS 
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS, 
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS. 

INSR ADDL SUBR POLICY EFF POLICY EXP 
LIMITS LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE •••en , ,.n,n POLICY NUMBER IMM/DD/YYYYI IMM/DD/YYYYI 

D X COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY y y 42-GL0-305436-01 6/8/2018 6/4/2019 EACH OCCURRENCE $1,000,000 - D CLAIMS-MADE 0 OCCUR 
DAMAGE TO RENTED 
PREMISES /Ea occurrence) $500,000 

X Contractual Liab 
~ 

MED EXP (Any one person) $ 
X Professional 
~ 

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $1,000,000 

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $2,000,000 Fl 0PRO- DLOC PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG $1,000,000 POLICY JECT 

OTHER: Professional $1,000,000 

A AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY 133-741000-8 6/8/2018 6/4/2019 COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT $1,000,000 (Ea accident) 
~ 

X ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) $ 
~ -OWNED SCHEDULED BODILY INJURY (Per accident) $ 
~ 

AUTOS ONLY - AUTOS 
HIRED NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE $ AUTOS ONLY AUTOS ONLY (Per accident) 

~ -
X Comp $1,000 X Coll $1,000 $ 

D X UMBRELLA LIAB M OCCUR 
42-UM0-305437-01 6/8/2018 6/4/2019 EACH OCCURRENCE $10,000,000 -

EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $10,000,000 

OED I X I RETENTION$ ?S nnn $ 
C WORKERS COMPENSATION y 39WNS55000 12/28/2017 12/28/2018 X I PER I I OTH-STATUTE ER AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY Y/N 

ANYPROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE 
D 

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $1,000,000 
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? N/A 
(Mandatory In NH) E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $1,000,000 
If yes, describe under 

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT $1,000,000 DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below 
E Excess Liability EXC30000689100 6/8/2018 6/4/2019 Limit: Occurance/Agg: $14,000,000 
B Crime I Fidelity 01-505-05-15 6/4/2018 6/4/2019 Limit: $5,000,000 
B Cyber Liability 01-505-05-23 6/4/2018 6/4/2019 Limit: $5,000,000 

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS /LOCATIONS/ VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required) 
Directors & Officers I Employment Practices Liability/ Fiduciary Policy #MML-09618-17 NAIC #27154 Effective: 12/28/2017 - 12/28/2018 
Property Policy #39 UUM HF9971 NAIC #19682 Effective: 06/08/2018 - 06/04/2019 

Newmark Knight Frank is an additional insureds on the above General Liability and Umbrella Liability Policies on a primary and non-contributory basis if 
required by written contract. 

Prior to loss, and if required by written contract, Waiver of Subrogation is provided on the General Liability/Umbrella Liability/Workers Compensation Policies for 
See Attached ... 

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION 

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE 
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS. 

Evidence of Insurance AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE 

I ~tbJ/=, -t ~ 
© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved. 

ACORD 25 (2016/03) The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD 
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ACORLJ ..___. 
AGENCY 

The Graham Company 

POLICY NUMBER 

CARRIER 

ADDITIONAL REMARKS 

AGENCY CUSTOMER ID: SOSSECU-01 --------------------
LO C #: --------

ADDITIONAL REMARKS SCHEDULE Page of 

NAMED INSURED 
SOS Security LLC 
1915 US Highway 46 
Parsippany, NJ 07054-1300 

I NAIC CODE 

EFFECTIVE DATE: 

THIS ADDITIONAL REMARKS FORM IS A SCHEDULE TO ACORD FORM, 

FORM NUMBER: 25 FORM TITLE: CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE 

Should any of the above described policies be cancelled before the expiration date thereof, The Graham Company will endeavor to mail 30 days written notice to 
the certificate holder, but failure to do so shall impose no obligation or liability of any kind upon The Graham Company, its agents or representatives. 

ACORD 101 (2008/01) © 2008 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved. 

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD 
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SOS SECURITY HOLDINGS, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES 

Consolidated Balance Sheets 

Year Ended 
December 30, December 31, 

2017 2016 

ASSETS 
Current assets: 

Cash $ 4,059,923 $ 787,157 
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of 
approximately $670,000 and $116,000, respectively 38,651,114 17,649,440 

Prepaid expenses and other current assets 3,219,387 1,667,092 

Total current assets 45,930,424 20,103,689 

Property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation 3,366,113 1,601,257 
Goodwill, net of accumulated amortization 60,113,122 25,648,018 
Intangible assets, net of accumulated amortization 9,841,942 13,451,257 
Other assets 113,302 137,826 

Total assets $ 119,364,903 $ 60,942,047 

LIAB,ILITIES 
Current liabilities: 

Revolving credit facility $ 6,700,000 $ 1,900,000 
Current maturities of long-term debt, net of debt discount 2,999,950 1,409,054 
Accounts payable 3,575,752 1,416,587 
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities 15,465,448 7,014,744 
Contingent consideration - business combinations 2,324,022 1,850,000 

Total current liabilities 31,065,172 13,590,385 

Long-term debt, net of debt discount 62,842,031 21 J 105,391 
Seller note,_ related party 2,000,000 2,000,000 
Deferred tax liability 230,639 
Contingent consideration - business combinations 3,006,000 

Total liabilities 99,143,842 36,695,776 

Commitments and contingencies 

MEMBERS' EQUITY 
Accumulated other comprehensive income 122,646 
Members' equity 20,098,415 24,246,271 

Total members' equity 20,221,061 24,246,271 

Total llabllltles and members' equity $ 119,3641903 $ 60,942,047 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements 
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SOS SECURITY HOLDINGS, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES 

Consolldated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss) 

Year Ended 
December 30, December 31, 

2017 2016 

Net service revenues $ 245,028,321 $ 168,983,507 
Cost of revenues 203,477,610 145,351,785 

Gross profit 41,650.711 23,631,722 

Selling, general and administrative expenses 26,615,079 14,216,189 
Amortization of goodwill and intangible assets 8,825,923 3,513,215 

35,441,002 17,729,404 

Change in fair market value of contingent consideration 290,734 59,000 

Income from operations 6,400,443 5,961,318 

Other income (expense): 
Gain on bargain purchase - business combination 350,000 
Interest expense and financing fees (3,932,565} (1,837,721} 
Deferred financing expense (627,628) (330,008) 
Lawsuit settlement (1,925,000) 
Management fees - related party (449,794) (253,777} 
Interest and other income 11,190 18,437 

{6,923,797) (2,053,069) 

(Loss) income before provision for in~ome taxes (523,354) 3,908,249 

Provision for income taxes 799,529 303,522 

Net (loss) income (1,322,883) 3,604,727 

Other comprehensive income - change in foreign currency translation 
adjustment 122,646 

Comprehensive (loss) Income $ {1,200,2371 $ 3,604,727 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements 
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SOS SECURITY HOLDINGS, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES 

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 

Year Ended 
December 30, December 31, 

2017 2016 

Cash flows from operating activities, net of business combinations: 
Net (loss) income $ (1,322,883) $ 3,604,727 
Adjustments to reconcile net (loss) income to net cash provided by 

operating activities: 
Depreciation expense 882,048 424,738 
Amortization of goodwill and intangible assets 8,825,923 3,513,215 
Deferred financing costs amortization 627,628 330,008 
Bad debt expense 482,090 45,443 
Gain on bargain purchase - business combination (350,000) 
Change in fair market value of contingent consideration {290,734) (59,000) 
Loss on sale of property and equipment 4,665 6,694 
Deferred income tax benefit (167,421) 
(Increase) decrease in: 

Accounts receivable (12,586,264) 2,027,575 
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 453,355 49,402 
Other assets 24,524 (21,804) 

Increase (decrease) in: 
Accounts payable 930,945 (534,889) 
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities 3,346,118 (1,636,642) 

Net cash provided by operating activities 1,209,994 7,399,467 

Cash flows from investing activities: 
Payments related to business combinations, net of cash acquired {38,288,775) (1,715,000) 
Purchases of property and equipment (1,386,768) (732,592) 

Net cash used in investing activities (39,675,543) (2,447,592) 

Cash flows from financing activities: 
Proceeds net of borrowings - revolving credit facility 4,800,000 
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt 47,200,000 1,850,000 
Payments of long-term debt (3,157,603) (1,364,244) 
Payments of contingent consideration (1,559,266) (2,191,000) 
Distributions (4,324,973) (2,769,405) 
Deferred financing costs (1,342,489) (110,501) 

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 41,615,669 (4,585.150) 

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash 122,646 

Net change in cash 3,272,766 366,725 
Cash at beginning of year 787,157 420,432 

Cash at end of year $ 410591923 $ 787,157 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements 
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SOS SECURITY HOLDINGS, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES 

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (continued) 

Supplemental disclosures of cash paid: 
Interest 
Taxes 

Noncash investing and financing activities: 
Contingent consideration relating to business combinations 
Common units issued for business combination 
Payable related to business combination 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements 

Year Ended 
December 30, December 31, 

2017 2016 

$ 3,566,639 
$ 1,424,188 

$ 5,330,022 
$ 1,500,000 
$ 1,264,944 

$ 2,112,834 
$ 304,427 

$ 600,000 

$ 

$ 
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CREDIT REFERENCES 

1. Name: FedEx Contact: Frank Cherichella Jr. 

Account#: 28777 Phone: 973-979-4332 Fax: 

Date of Account Opening: 5/31/2013 Payment Terms: 15 days Pay Per Terms: _Y_e_s __ _ 

Twelve Month High: $3,500 Current Balance: $2,005.00 ------------- -------------

2. Name: Staples 
---------------

Account#: 1038697 --------------

3. Name: Madison Capital 

Account#: 

Contact: Wendy Stewart 

Phone: 201-510-7149 

Contact: Erin !stuan 

Fax: 

Phone: 312-980-5931 Fax: 

Date of Account Opening: Payment Terms: Pay Per Terms: _Y_e_s __ _ 
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,n10 JUN 28 Pl1 I: 5 l 
INDEMNITY AND PAYMENT BOND 

BOND NO. 605-100020-4 

KNOW ALL BY THESE PRESENTS: 

That we, sos security LLC as INDEMNITOR and 
United States Fire Insurance Company as SURETY, a surety company 
authorized to do business in the State of Florida . are held and firmly bound unto 
BROWARD COUNTY, as OBLIGEE, a political subdivision of the State of Florida, in the 
full sum of Twenty Thousand Dollars xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx DOLLARS ($ 20,000 xxxxxxxxxx ) . 

for the payment of which we bind ourselves, our heirs, successors, assigns and personal 
representatives for the performance of tile obligations hereinafter set forth : 

NOW THEREFORE, the condition of this obligation is such that if INDEMNITOR, 
its heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns shall well and truly save 
harmless and keep indemnified BROWARD COUNTY, its successors and assigns, from 
and against all loss, costs, expenses, damages, injury, claims, actions, liabilities and 
demands of every kind (including but not limited to all reasonable attorney's fees to and 
through appellate, supplemental and bankruptcy proceedings) which arises from, is 
caused by, or results from or on account of: 

(i) failure of INDEMNlTOR to pay to BROWARD COUNTY, when due, 
any and all tariff or other charges that have accrued at Port 
Everglades (whether relating to the furnishing of services or 
materials to INDEMNITOR, its principals, agents, servants or 
employees at Port Everglades; or, due to injury to property of Port 
Everglades; or, stemming from the use of Port Everglades facilities 
by INDEMNITOR, its principals, agents, servants or employees; or, 
otherwise); or 

(Ii) non-compliance by INDEMNITOR, its principals, agents, servants or 
employees with applicable laws, ordinances, rules and regulations of 
the federal , state and local governmental units or agencies (including 
but not limited to the terms and provisions of the BROWARD 
COUNTY Code of Ordinances, Administrative Code, and all 
procedures and policies of the Port Everglades Department), as 
amended from time to time; or 

(iii) any act, omission, negligence or misconduct of INDEMNITOR, its 
principals, agents, servants or employees in Port Everglades 
(whether causing injury to persons or otherwise; 

then these obligations shall be null and void, otherwise to remain in full force and effect. 
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AS A FURTHER CONDITION of this obligation that it shall remain in full force and 
effect until and unless the Surety provides at least ninety (90) days prior written notice to 
BROWARD COUNTY of its intention to terminate this Bond. 

Any notices required herein shall be given in writing and be delivered to: Broward 
County's Port Everglades Department, Attn : Director of Administration , 1850 Eller Drive, 
Fort Lauderdale , Florida 33316, with a copy to: Broward County Administrator, 
Governmental Center, 115 S. Andrews Avenue, Fort Lauderdale , Florida 33301 . 

IN W ITNESS WHEREOF, INDEMNITOR has caused th is Bond to be executed by 
sos Security LLC , on this 26th day of June , 20~. and attested to by its 
Secretary and its corporate seal to be affixed , and the Surety has caused this Bond to be 
executed on this 26th day of June , 20~. in its name, by its Attorney-in-Fact, 
duly authorized to do so. 

ATTEST: 

,~~~ 
Corporate Secretary 

Sec re -I e,i.r- 't, 
(Print Name of ecretary) 

(SEAL) 

ATTEST: 

See Power of Attorney 

(SEAL) 

INDEMNITOR: 

Company Name:_s_o_s_s_e_cu_ri-'-ty ______ _ 

By: /~ ;.J~ 
' 

(Print Name of Pres .N ice Pres.) 

Title : k .i () r) JA ~..51 ,r 
(Print) 

:). ; day of ~ ) v'Q.._ .20-1!2_ 

SURETY: 

Company Name: United States Fire Insurance Company 

By: ·~ 4'-

Michael Lehner 
(Print Name of Pres.Nice Pres.) 

Title: Attorney In Fact 
(Print) 

_2_6t_h _ day of _J_un_e ______ , 20_18 __ 

G:\Port\LEGAL\WPDOCS\2011\FORMS.11\PECAF-BD.101 .docx 
Rev. 01/27/16 
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SURETY ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

State of (New Jersey ) 
County of (._B~e ....... rg_e_n _____ ) 

On this 26th day of June 2018 before me personally came 
Michael Lehner ·,tome known. who being by me duly sworn, deposes and says that 
he resides in the City of New City that he is the ATTORNEY-IN-FACT of 

UNITED STATES FIRE INSURANCE COMPANY, INC. of Delaware the corporation 
described in and which executed the foregoing Agreement; that she knows the seal of 
the said corporation; that the seal affixed to the said agreement is such corporate seal; 
that it was so affixed by the order of the Board of Directors of said corporation, and that 
she signed (her)(his) name thereto by like order. 

(Sig~ry Public) ·---­

My commission expires L\\,d2023 ' \ 

AMANDA DUKE 
NOTARY PUBLIC OF NEW JERSEY 

Comm. # 60080289 
My Commission Expires 411orio23 
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POWER OF ATTORNEY 
UNITED STATES FIRE INSURANCE COMPANY 

PRINCIPAL OFFICE- MORRISTOWN, NEW JERSEY 
87802416318 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: That United States Fire Insurance Company, a corporation duly organized and existing under the laws of the 
state of Delaware, has made, constituted and appointed, and does hereby make, constitute and appoint: 

Marc Katz, Michael Lehner, Steven Mechanic 

each, its true and lawful Attorney(s)-ln-Fact, with full power and authority hereby conferred in its name, place and stead, to execute, acknowledge and deliver: 
Any and all bonds and undertakings of surety and other documents that the ordinary course of surety business may require, and to bind United States Fire 
Insurance Company thereby as fully and to the same extent as if such bonds or undertakings had been duly executed and acknowledged by the regularly elected 
officers of United States Fire Insurance Company at its principal office, in amounts or penalties not exceeding: Seven Million, Five Hundred Thousand 
Dollars ($7,500,000). 

This Power of Attorney limits the act of those named therein to the bonds and undertakings specifically named therein, and they have no authority to bind 
United States Fire Insurance Company except in the manner and to the extent therein stated. 

This Power of Attorney revokes all previous Powers of Attorney issued on behalf of the Attorneys-In-Fact named above and expires on January 31, 2019. 

This Power of Attorney is granted pursuant to Article IV of the By-Laws of United States Fire Insurance Company as now in full force and effect, and 
consistent with Article III thereof, which Articles provide, in pertinent part: 

Article IV, Execution of Instruments - Except as the Board of Directors may authorize by resolution, the Chairman of the Board, President, 
any Vice-President, any Assistant Vice President, the Secretary, or any Assistant Secretary shall have power on behalf of the Corporation: 

(a) to execute, affix the corporate seal manually or by facsimile to, acknowledge, verify and deliver any contracts, obligations, instruments 
and documents whatsoever in connection with its business including, without limiting the foregoing, any bonds, guarantees, undertakings, 
recognizances, powers of attorney or revocations of any powers of attorney, stipulations, policies of insurance, deeds, leases, mortgages, 
releases, satisfactions and agency agreements; 

(b) to appoint, in writing, one or more persons for any or all of the purposes mentioned in the preceding paragraph (a), including affixing the 
seal of the Corporation. 

Article III, Officers, Section 3.1 I, Facsimile Signatures. The signature of any officer authorized by the Corporation to sign any bonds, 
guarantees, undertakings, recognizances, stipulations, powers of attorney or revocations of any powers of attorney and policies of insurance 
issued by the Corporation may be printed, facsimile, lithographed or otherwise produced. In addition, if and as authorized by the Board of 
Directors, dividend warrants or checks, or other numerous instruments similar to one another in form, may be signed by the facsimile 
signature or signatures, lithographed or otherwise produced, of such officer or officers of the Corporation as from time to time may be 
authorized to sign such instruments on behalf of the Corporation. The Corporation may continue to use for the purposes herein stated the 
facsimile signature of any person or persons who shall have been such officer or officers of the Corporation, notwithstanding the fact that he 
may have ceased to be such at the time when such instruments shall be issued. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, United States Fire Insurance Company has caused these presents to be signed and attested by its appropriate officer and its 
corporate seal hereunto affixed this 101h day of March, 2016. 

UNITED STA TFS FIRF. INSTTRANCE COMPANY 

}) '' . ';p 
\ 

Anthony R. Slimowicz, Senior Vice President 
State of New Jersey} 
County of Morris } 

On this I 01h day of March 2016, before me, a Notary public of the State of New Jersey, came the above named officer of United States Fire Insurance 
Company, to me personally known to be the individual and officer described herein, and acknowledged that he executed the foregoing instrument and affixed 
the seal of United States Fire Insurance Company thereto by the authority of his office. 

SONIA SCALA 
NOTARY PUBLIC OF NEW JERSEY 

MY COMMISSION EXPIRES 3/25/2019 
Sonia Scala (Notary Public) 

I, the undersigned officer of United States Fire Insurance Company, a Delaware corporation, do hereby certify that the original Power of Attorney of which the 
foregoing is a full, true and correct copy is still in force and effect and has not been revoked. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the corporate seal of United States Fire Insurance Company on the 26th day of June2018 
UNITED STATES FIRE INSURANCE COMPANY 

/! i . l' . ·). \'1 ( 
l:\:i -.J t--i · ; :i I' i 

Al Wright, Senior Vice President 
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UNITED STATES FIRE INSURANCE COMPANY 
1209 ORANGE STREET. WILMINGTON. DELAWARE 19801 

STATEMENT OF ASSETS, LIABIUTIES. SURPLUS AND OTHER FUNDS 

AT DECEMBER 31, 2017 

AS.SET_S 
Bonds (Amonizcd Value) . .. .. . . . .. ... . . . . ... .. .. . ... . ... 
Preferred S1ocks (Mn1kc1 Vnlue) .................... .... .. . 
Common Smcks (Markel Vnluc) .. 
C:a_~h. Cnsh Ec1uivalcn1~. ond Shon Tenn lnvc~101cn1s . ... .. .. 
Derivat i\'C!\ , .... ..... .. .. ... ....... . . .. ... . ... _ .. .. . .. ...... . 
01hcr lnveslcd Asscls , . .. . .. .. , ......... . , ........... ... .. . 
IJ,vcs1men1 lnco1ne Due and Accrued... . .. , . . . . .. , • 
Premiums ilnd Considerntions~ ........... , . ...... . , . .. , .. . 
An10un1s Reco verable from Re lnsurel'5 ........... . 
Funds Held by or Dc1>0si1cd with Re insured Companies .. ,. 
Curren I lncomc Taxes Recoverable ........... . ... .. .............. ... ... .. 
Nc1 Defem:d Ta, Assc1 . .. ......... ..... . .. , ....... . 
Elccuonic Dala Processing Equipment .. ........ .. -- · ... . __ ,--- • • .. 
Receivables from Parenl. Subsidiaries and Affilia1cs ... ................. .. . 
Other Asse1s .. . ... .. .. .. •. .. . .. .. .... . .. ...... . .. ...... ....... .. .. . 

TOTAL ASSETS ... ............. ............ . . .. 

LIABILITIES, SURPLUS & OTHER FUNDS 

Losses (Reported Losses Nel of Reinsurance Ceded and lucurred 

852,724,517 
2,500,000 

1,278,534,869 
I, 110,717.497 

11.462,474 
.US,759,125 

8,013,891 
237,02 1,943 

23 ,944,019 
4,521,882 

324,900 
135,312,662 

3,772,271 
26,323,495 
63,4 13.033 

4,094,346,578 

Bui Nol Reported Losses) ...... ..... ..... ........ ...... .... ... ... . .. . .. ... .. .. .. J,570,075,)92 
Reinsurance Payable on Paid Losses and Loss Adjus1ment Expenses........... 76,325,088 
Loss Adj11s1men1 Expenses .... ....... _ . . .. . . .. ....... ... . ..... _ .... .. . ... . _ _ 394,866,509 
Commissions Payable, Cont ingent Commissions and Other Similar Charges. 6,115,178 
Olher Expenses (Excluding Taxes, Licenses and Fees) ...... . ...... .. .. ...................... ... .. . .. . 53,552,681 
Taxes, Licenses and Fees (Exclud ng Federal Income Taxes) .. .. . ..... , ....... • . .. .. 20,497,732 
Unearned Premiums ..... .... .... ........ ......... .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . ... .... .... . . .. ... . . ......... ----- •.. • . 504,835,046 
A<lvH11ce Pn:mium .. . ........ . ................... ............... . .. . .. . , ... ..... .. ...... .... , ..... .. 3.459,204 
Ceded Reinsurance Premiums Pnynble . ...... , .. ..... .... .. ... ... . .. . ..... . . ... .... . ... .... .... .. .. ....... .. 23,03 l,797 
Fund, Held hy Cnmpany under Reinsurance Treslies ... ............... .. ......... .. .... ... .... .. • ... 16,414,772 
Amounls Wilhheld by Company for Account of01hers .. . ... ...... ............. ... ___ -- · ·· . •. ... . • .. .... ..... 68,163,429 
Provision for Reinsurance. ,. ... ... .... .. ... ..... . .. . . ......... .. ..... ..... .. . .... ......... .. ...... ............ .. ......... 900,479 
Payable lO Pnren1, Subsidiaries and Amlimes .... . .. ........................... .. .... .... ............. , ........... .. .. .. , 21,048,714 
01her liahili1ies .... . ........ . ...... , .. . , .. ..... . ... ........... ..... .. . , . .. ... .. . . ..... ... . .......... ........... .. ........... __ ....,..,......,.,3,.,2~,7,.,9,...8~,8,...9_8_ 

TOTAL LIABILITIES ............................. . ... ...................... , ... . .. .. .. ... ...... ==$2==-,7=9"'2,=08=4=,7=1 =9 

Common Qipitol Stock ..... . . .......... ... .. .. .......... .... . . ...... ...... ...... ... .... .. ... . 12,210,000 
Gross Pa,d In and Con1ribu1ed Su'l)lus ... . . .. . ... ......... ..... ... . .. ........ . . .. , .. .. . , ...... ,......... . ..... . . . 1,115,644,940 
U11nssigned Funds (Surplus) ............ ,.. . ............ ....... . ...... ....... .. ....... ... .. .. . . .. . . .. .. • . .. .. .. , ___ ....;..;17_4~,4-'0-"6.:..;,9...;.l.;;..9_ 

Surplus as Regards Policyholders ...... .. ...... .. ..... .... ... ............ . .. , .... , , .......... ___ 1~,3_U_2~,2_6_1~,8_5_9_ 
TOTAL LIAHIL'l'Ul!S, SURPLUS & OTHER FUNDS .. ........ ..... ..... . .. . ... ... .... ... ==S=4-'-,0=9"'4,=34=6=-,5=7=8 

I, Carmine Scaglione, Vice President and Coniroller of IJNITED STATES FIRE INSURANCE COMPANY, cenify 1ha1 !he foregoing is n fair stn1cmc111 of AsselS, 
Liabili1ies, Surplus and Other Funds of this Company, nt 1he close of bus iness, December JI, 2017. as rellccled by ii. books and recortls and as reported in its icn1cmcn1 
OJI file with the Insurance Depnnmenl of the S1a1c of Delaware. 

lt'"' ' ' ·· ··· 
•0 • •• ljl/;'feSTll'JONY WHEREOF, l have set my hund 11nd 11rrixed 1he seal of lhe Company, this 6th dny of March, 2018. 

' • r l)NlTEO .si),TP.S FIRE INSURANCE COMPANY 
· .. ·· . · ... . 

.. .. .. ... 

. .-
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BROWARD COUNTY LOCAL BUSINESS TAX RECEIPT 
115 S. Andrews Ave., Rm. A-100. Ft. Lauderdale, FL 33301-1895 - 954-831-4000 

VALID OCTOBER 1, 2017 THROUGH SEPTEMBER 30, 2018 

DBA: 
Business Name: sos SECURITY LLC 

Rece '1pt#·319-227560 
, "ALL OTHERS {PRIVATE 

Business Type: INVESTIGATIVE AGENCY) 

Owner Name: EDWARD B SILVERMAN 
Business Location: 2101 N COMMERCE PKl·IY 

l'IESTON 

Business Opened:09/17 /2009 
State/County/Cert/Reg: 

Exemption Code: 
Business Phone: 

Rooms Seats 

Number of Machines: 

Employees 
6 

For Vending Business Only 

Machines Professionals 

Vending Type: 

Tax Amount Transfer Fee NSF Fee Penalty Prior Years Collection Cost Total Paid 

37 .50 0.00 0.00 0,00 0.00 0.00 37.50 

THIS RECEIPT MUST BE POSTED CONSPICUOUSLY IN YOUR PLACE OF BUSINESS 

THIS BECOMES A TAX R.ECEIPT 

WHEN VALIDATED 

Mailing Address: 

EDWARD B SILVERMAN 
1915 ROUTE 46 E 
PARSIPPANY, NJ 07054 

This tax is levied for the privilege of doing business within Broward County and is 
non-regulatory in nature. You must meet all County and/or Municipality planning 
and zoning requirements. This Business Tax Receipt must be transferred when 
the business is sold, business name has changed or you have moved the 
business location. This receipt does not indicate that the business Is legal or that 
it is in compliance with State or local laws and regulations. 

2017 .. 2018 

R~ceipt #WWW-16-00148457 
Paid 07/24/2017 37 .50 

BROWARD COUNTY LOCAL BUSINESS TAX RECEIPT 
115 S. Andrews Ave., Rm. A-100, Ft. Lauderdale, FL 33301-1895- 954-831-4000 

VALID OCTOBER 1, 2017 THROUGH SEPTEMBER 30, 2018 

OBA-
Business Name; ~OS SECURITY LLC 

Receipt#: 319-227560 
Business Type;ALL OTHERS (PRIVATE 

INVESTIGATIVE AGENCY) 

Owner Name: EDWARD B SILVERMAN 
Business Location: 2101 N COMMERCE PKWY 

WESTON 

Business Opened: 09/17/2009 
State/County/Cert/Reg: 

Exemption Code: 
Business Phone: 

Rooms Seats 

Signature 
Number of Machines: 

I Tax Amount Transfer Fee I NSF Fee 

Employees 
6 

For Vending Buslnoss Only 

I Penally I 

Machines Profess Iona ls 

Vending Type: 
Prior Years 1· Collection Cost Total Paid I 

I 37.50 0.001 0.001 0.001 0.001 0.00 37. soi 
Receipt #l'IWW-16-00148457 
Paid 07/24/2017 37.50 
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FlDRIDADEPARI'MENTOF AGRICUL1UREAND CONSUMER SERVICES 
ADAM H. PUTNAM 

07/06/17 
DATE ISSUED 

SOS SECURITY LLC 
6360 NW 5TH WAY 

SUITE203 

FORT LAUDERDALE, FL 33309 

i 

COMMISSIONER 

DIVISION OF LICENSING 

09/22/20 
DATE OF EXPIRATION 

FISHER, KENNETH, PRESIDENT 
FRANK, BARRY, VICE PRESIDENT 
SILVERMAN, EDWARD B, OTHER 

B 2500022 
LICENSE NUMBER 

THE SECURITY AGENCYNAMED ABOVE IS LICENSED AND REGULATED UNDER THE PROVISIONS OF 
CHAPTER 493, FLORIDA STATUTES. 
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FLORIDADEPARTMENTOF AGRICULTURE AND CONSUMER SERVICES 
ADAMH. PUTNAM 

04/04/18 
DATE ISSUED 

SOS S·ECURITY LLC 
5323 MILLENIA LAKES BL VD, 

SUITE 300 

ORLANDO, FL 32839 

COMMISSIONER · 

DIVISION OF LICENSING 

05/06/20 
DATE OF EXPIRATION 

BB1400004 
LICENSE NUMBER 

TIIB SECURITY AGENCY BRANCH OFFICE NAMED ABOVE IS LICENSED AND REGULATED UNDER TIIB 
PROVISIONS OF CHAPTER 493, FLORIDA STATUTES. 

ADAMH. PUTNAM 
COMMISSIONER 
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FLORIDADEPARTMENTOF AGRICULTURE AND CONSUMER SER.VICES 
ADAM IL PUTNAM 

03/07/17 
DATE ISSUED 

SOS SECURITY LLC 
555 WINDERL Y PLACE 

SU1TE300 

MAITLAND, FL 32751 

COMMISSIONER 

DIVISION OF LICENSING 

05/06/20 
DATE OF EXPIRATION 

BB1400004 
LICENSE NUMBER 

THE SECURITY AGENCYBRANCH OFFICE NAMED ABOVE IS LICENSED AND REGULATED UNDER THE 
PROVISIONS OF CHAPTER 493, FLORIDA STATUTES. 

I 
I 
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02/11/ 16 
DATE ISSUED 

SOS SECURITY LLC 
10510 PORTAL CROSSING 

SUITE-104 

BRADENTON, FL 34211 

ADAM H. PUTNAM 
COMMISSIONER 

DIVISION OF LICENSING 

03/18/19 
DATE OF EXPIRATION 

FISHER, KENNETH, PRESIDENT 
FRANK, BARRY, VICE PRESIDENT 
BUTYN, RICHARD J, SECRETARY-TREASURER 
SILVERMAN, EDWARD B, OTHER 

A 1200257 
LICENSE NUMBER 

THE PRIVATE INVESTIGATIVE AGENCYNAMED ABOVE IS LICENSED AND REGULATED UNDER THE 
PROVISIONS OF CHAPTER 493, FLORIDA STATUTES. 
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Health and Safety 

ZERO TOLERANC£ DRUCi AND ALCOHOL POLIC-Y 

The objective of this policy is to provide a workplace and environment that is free from 
the effects of substance abuse. Furthermore, the Company believes that it has a 
responsibility to its employees, to those who use or come into contact with the 
Company's services, and to the general public to ensure safe operating and working 
conditions. To satisfy the Company's drug free workplace objective and meet these 
responsibilities, SOS must establish a work environment where employees are free from 
the effects of drugs, alcohol or other impairing substances. Accordingly, the Company 
has adopted this substance abuse policy. 

The following conditions and activities are expressly prohibited on Company premises or 
property or during work lime or while representing the Company in any work-related 
fashion: 

• The manufacture, offer, sale, attempt to sell or possession of alcohol and other 
controlled or illegal substances (except slricl!y in accordance with medical 
authorization); 
The use of alcohol and other controlled or illegal substances prior to coming to work 
and/or while on duty; 

• The use or possession of any other substances that impair job performance or pose 
a hazard; 

• Reporting for work under the influence of alcohol, illegal drugs or controlled 
substances in a manner that may impair work performance. 

If your doctor prescribes medication for you, either over-the-counter or prescription drugs, 
it is your responsibility to ensure that your ability to work safely will not be affected by 
taking the medication. If you are In doubt, please discuss this with your physician. Under 
no circumstances are medications to be taken while on duty that could reduce the 
alertness or physical ability to perform normal dutres and respond appropriately to 
emergencies. If you are unable to work safely due to the effects of taking prescribed 
medication, you are required to provide a doctor's statement before commencing work. 
Any medical issues discussed will be kept confidential. 

If you have a problem with drugs and/or alcohol and wish to undertake rehabilitation, you 
will be granted an unpaid leave of absence for this purpose. It is your responsibility to 
seek help before the problem adversely affects your work performance or results in a 
violation of this policy. If you need assistance in seeking this help, you may talk to a 
member of management. No one will be discriminated against for undertaking 
rehabilitation. 

As part of the Company's employment screening process, any applicant to whom an offer 
of employment is made must pass a test for controlled substances, under the procedures 
described below. The offer of employment is conditioned on a negative test result. 
Applicants will be informed of the Company's drug testing policy in the employment 
application process. 

For purposes of this policy, having any detectable level of an illegal or controlled drug in 
one's system while covered by this policy will be considered to be a violation. Where the 
Company has a reasonable suspicion that an employee is in violation of this policy, the 
employee will be required to submit to testing to determine the presence or use or any 
involvement with alcohol or drugs. The Company reserves the right to determine whether 
reasonable suspicion exists. 

SOS Security LLC Employee Handbook 46 
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The following definitions apply: 

Reasonable suspicion is specific describable observations concerning such 
circumstances as the work performance, appearance (including, for example, noticeable 
odor of an alcoholic beverage or other illicit substance}, behavior or speech of the 
employee, or as being involved in an accident on Company premises which results in 
physical injury or property damage. 

Under the Influence is defined as any detectable level of alcohol or drugs in an 
employee's blood or urine or any noticeable or perceptible impairment of the employee's 
mental or physical faculties. 

Controlled Substances is defined as all forms of narcotics, depressants, stimulants, 
hallucinogens and cannabis whose sale, purchase, transfer, use or possession is 
prohibited or restricted by law. 

Over-the-counter drugs are those that are generally available without a prescription 
from a medical doctor and are limited to those drugs that are capable of impairing the 
judgment of an employee to safely perform his or her duties. 

Prescription drugs are defined as those drugs that are used in the course of medical 
treatment and have been prescribed and authorized for use by a licensed 
practitioner/physician or dentist. 

Any employee who is found to be in violation of this policy, or who refuses to submit to 
testing as required, or who refuses to cooperate or attempts to subvert the testing 
process, will be subject to corrective action which could include immediate termination of 
employment. The Company also reserves the right to involve law enforcement officials 
for any conduct which it believes might be in violation of Federal or Stale law. 

SMOKE-FREE WORK cNVIRONfvfENT 

It is prohibited to smoke cigarettes or use any tobacco products while on duty or in 
uniform at any lime at a client's facility. The only lime that smoking is permitted is while 
on scheduled breaks and lunch periods that are taken away from your post and in a 
designated smoking area, if that client allows for security personnel to smoke while in 
uniform. 

-End of Section -

SOS Security LLC Employee Handbook 47 
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® SOS SECURITY SAFETY 

SAFETY - A BEST PRA CT/CE 

Safety is a fundamental concern of SOS Security. We place the highest degree of 
importance on the safety and well -being of employees. 

~ 2017-2018 EMR rating of 0.59 

Our safety programs are compatible with customers' programs and in compliance with 

OSHA requirements at all locations; as well as federal directives, regulations, and 

procedures. It is with the complete commitment of the entire organization that SOS 

Security develops, implements, and sustains a safety program for security operations. 

Safety Program Management 

GOAL ·r 1";, ·. • ( 

Safe Workplace with Zero Accidents 

Safety Responsibilities 

Involve every employee in safety 

management as an essential part of all 

operations 

Each SOS Security employee plays a vital role in the safety program. These documented, 

formal roles outline the proper procedures that each employee must follow in pursuit of 

safety. Roles are defined for: 

•:• Chief Operating Officer 

•!• Vice Presidents & Branch Managers 

•:• Managers & Supervisors 

•!• Employees 

SOS Security Safety Management Team 

The Chief Operating Officer has formed and serves as principle Executive of the Safety 

Management Team. Other members of the team include the Corporate Safety Director, 

Regional Vice Presidents, and Senior VP- Training. This team will review the details of 

any accident, determine (or verify) the root cause of the accident, and ensure that 
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@ SOS SECURITY SAFETY 

corrective action is taken to prevent its recurrence. This team monitors safety 

performance and interacts with SOS Security Executive Management - and, when 

necessary, customers as well - to resolve safety issues. 

Safety Hotline (800-SECURE-O) 

The Safety Hotline was established to give each employee direct access to SOS Security 

senior management. The hotline is available 24 hours a day, 7 days a week. All calls are 

reviewed by the Corporate Safety Director, who directs the appropriate office to 

investigate, take needed action, and report findings and corrective action. If the ca ller 

leaves a name, an individual response will be provided. Anonymous calls are also 

accepted and investigated. 

The hotline is answered by a member of the SOS Security corporate staff 24-hours a day. 

Safety Program Requirements 

Occupational Safety and Health Act Compliance 

The plan will be reviewed annually by the Corporate Safety Director to ensure that it is 

in compliance with OSHA requirements. Field locations will learn OSHA requirements 

and will ensure compliance consistent with operational needs. Generally, sites with 

complex and/or varied operations need a person or persons (Safety Officer, Operations 

Officer, Administrator, etc.) to serve as the focal point for OSHA requirements and 

compliance. The Corporate Safety Director will render assistance to persons serving in 

this capacity, particularly with regard to interpretat ion of requ irements. 

Tosic Safety Analysis 

The Corporate Safety Director or his designee will examine safety aspects of each hew 

work site in order to identify safety issues and include specific task and associated 

subtasks, related to safety, in the contract. Each task and subtask wi ll be prioritized in 

terms of the degree and types of risks that are associated with it. 

Changes in the tasks and subtasks that will potentially alter the level or type of risk will 

also be analyzed, as will any task that is being performed when an accident, injury, 

illness or lost time incident occurs. 
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@ SOS SECURITY SAFETY 

Accident/Incident Investigation, Analysis & Reporting 

It is extremely important that accidents, injuries and lost time incidents, as wel l as 

unusual occurrences, and "near misses," are thoroughly investigated. Any such 

occurrences should be analyzed to determine their root causes, and these should be 

reported in the most expeditious manner possible. Senior management is responsible 

for timely reporting and the ongoing tracking of each matter's resolution. 

If possible, the manager or supervisor responsible for the work site in question must 

report to the scene of an accident or incident personally. This is to ensure the 

accident/incident is properly investigated and analyzed, and to ensure that t any injured 

employee receives prompt and proper care. 

Safety Training Corporate Objectives 

OBJECTIVES 

The objective of safety training is to foster concern for safety among each employee, and to 

create a culture of safety in the organization at large. 

It will be SOS Security's safety training policy that no employee will spend a day 

on the job without encountering a reminder, lesson, briefing, campaign, 

awareness program, sign, poster, bulletin, memo that deals with some aspect of 

safety. 

Safety training materials should be omnipresent, such that each employee will 

spend his or her workday aware of SOS Security's call to safety, and its "zero 

accident" goal. 

RESPONSIBILITY 

Managers and supervisors will be responsible for administering safety training programs. Such 

programs may be centered on topics ranging from workplace safety to safety in the home, to 

safety on the road. 
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SOS Security 
Safety Training 
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"5 C's of Workplace Safety" 

0 Concern 
0 Consciousness 
0 Communication 
0 Commitment 
0 Common Sense 

® 
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Goals for Today's Training 

0 Increase employees' awareness regarding 
workplace safety and emergency preparedness 

0 Provide employees with tools to reduce risks of 
illness and injury in the workplace 

0 Inform employees of their rights and 
responsibilities regarding workplace safety 

0 Build community together 

0 Comply with regulatory mandates 

® 
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Agenda 

0 Emergency Preparedness 
• Emergency Action Plan/Emergency evacuation -

earthquake, fire, other disasters 

• Emergency supplies - office and personal 

• Personal emergency data 

• Emergency information/resources 

0 General and Office Safety 
• Overview of potential workplace hazards - prevention 

and correction 

• Injury and Illness Prevention Program 

® 
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Emergency Preparedness 

0 Emergency Action Plan/Emergency evacuation -
earthquake, fire, other disasters 

0 Emergency supplies - office and personal 

0 Personal emergency data 

0 Emergency information/resources 

® 
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Injury and Illness Prevention 
Program 

At many client locations we have 
implemented campus wide Injury and 
Illness Prevention Programs {IIPP) to 
assure a safe and healthful work 
environment for their employees. The 
IIPP is the umbrella under which all 
employee health and safety programs are 
implemented. 

® 
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IIPP Goals 

0 Provide a safe and healthful workplace for 
employees 

0 Reduce risk of disease, illness, injury and 
harmful exposures to the campus community 

0 Reduce worker's compensation claims and 
costs 

0 Improve employee morale and efficiency 

0 Comply with regulatory mandates 

® 
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Program Elements 

0 Assigns responsibilities for health and safety 

0 Establishes mechanisms for hazard 
identification and hazard mitigation 

0 Requires workplace inspections and accident 
investigation 

0 Requires communication of health and safety 
information 

0 Reaffirms training and documentation 
mandates 

® 
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Common IIPP Policies 

0 Em_ergency Preparedness 

0 Ergonom_ics 

0 Com_m_unicable Diseases 

0 Hazard Com_m_unication 

0 Hazardous Materials 

® 

EXHIBIT 3 
Page 69 of 250



ERGONOMICS 

What is good Ergonom_ics? 
• Proper seating 

• Proper alignment to work 

• Height of VDT to employees view 

• Glare and eye strain 

• Work breaks 

• Exercises 
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Biohazardous & Chemical 
Safety 

BIO HAZARD 

Use Universal Precautions 
• Assume all human blood or other 

potentially contaminated material is 
treated as infectious 

Chemical Hygiene Plan 
Specific provisions require: 

• Training 

• Labeling of Hazardous Materials 

• Management of MSDS's 

® 
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Rights - As an employee you 
have a right to: 

0 A safe workplace free from recognized 
hazards 

0 Receive training on hazards associated with 
your job 

0 Know how to control hazards of your job 

0 Report workplace hazards without fear of 
reprisal 

® 
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Roles & Responsibilities -
Managers and Supervisors 

Managers and Supervisors are 
expected to provide Environmental Health 
and Safety leadership and guidance within 
their departments 

® 
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Managers and Supervisors should: 

0 Inform employees about specifics of the 
department's IIPP 

0 Provide safety training consistent with 
employee job duties 

0 Enforce safety rules and regulations within the 
department 

0 Provide a means to identify workplace hazards 

0 Maintain all EH&S documentation 

® 
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Roles & Responsibilities - All 
Employees 

All employees have a responsibility to 
maintain a safe and healthful work 
environment 
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As an employee, you should: 

0 Follow safe work practices 

0 Be familiar with your departmental IIPP 
0 Know the potential health and safety 

hazards of your job and how to protect 
yourself 

0 Know how to report unsafe conditions 

0 Report any work-related injury or illness to 
• your supervisor 

0 Know what to do in an emergency 

® 
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As an employee, you should: 

0 Correct unsafe conditions within your 
authority 

0 If you are unclear about your 
responsibilities ask your supervisor 

® 
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Roles & Responsibilities -
Environmental Health & Safety 

EH&S has responsibility for monitoring 
compliance of the overall Injury and Illness 
Prevention Program to minimize or prevent 
occupational injuries and illnesses, and to 
protect the quality of the workplace and 
surrounding environment 

® 
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EH&S: 

0 Advises the campus community of its 
responsibilities with respect to health and 
safety issues 

0 Recommends appropriate corrective actions 
and programs 

0 Implements new health and safety programs 

0 Serves as the liaison between security and 
various external agencies and regulatory 
bodies 
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GENERAL GOAL OF ALL SAFETY 
COMMITTEES 

Conducting well planned, regularly scheduled 

safety committee meetings provides an 

opportunity to present training and exchange 

ideas, fosters an environment that promotes 

safe behavior, improves safety performance 

through collaboration and participation and 

reinforces everyone's responsibility to safety. 

® 
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Safety Committee Members 
Activities & Duties 

• Review departmental self inspections 
• Review RM8:S Safety Consultations 
• Evaluate equipment / work processes 

(JHA's) 
• Report department safety suggestions, 

facilitate employee participation 
• Assist in solving safety problems. 
• Assist in developing and implementing 

safety training 

® 
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Safety Committee Members 
Activities & Duties (Continued) 

• Review incident / accident trends 

• Conduct accident investigations 

• Review old policies and procedures and 
assist in developing new ones 

• Evaluate the safety program effectiveness 

® 
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Resources 

0 Your Supervisor 

0 Bulletin Board in Staff Room 

0 IIPP Plan 

0 IIPP Coordinator 

® 
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"5 C's of Workplace 
Safety" 

0 Concern 
0 Consciousness 
0 Communication 
0 Commitment 
0 Common Sense 

® 

EXHIBIT 3 
Page 84 of 250



RECRUITING, SCREENING & SELECTION 

• Employee background screenings include: 

• Crimina l records - Prior seven years 

• Employment references - Prior three years 

• Sexual offender, education, and military service checked and documented. 

• Social Security Number verification 

• Minimum of three personal reference 

• Department of Motor Vehicle check when personnel are required to drive a patrol vehicle. 

• Proof of U.S. Citizenship (1-9), with certain exceptions for approved immigrants, will be maintained in the applicant's personnel 
file . 

(I) SOSSecu rity® 
© 2018 SOS Security I Confidential I 1 
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TRAINING - STANDARD PROGRAM 

• New Employee Orientation 

• State Mandated Training 

• Client Pre-assignment Training 

• Site Specific Tailored Training 

• On-going Refresher Training 

@ SOSSecu rity® 

Building the Best 
Partners for our ,Clients 

INITIAL TRAINJNG 
- ------~ -- - --

I ONGOING TRAINING & OE.\/ElOPMENT 
i 

© 2018 SOS Security I Confidential I 2 
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TRAINING- SPECIALIZED PROGRAM 

• First Aid, AED & CPR Certification and Re-certification 

• Fire Safety Officer/ Director Training & Certification 

• OSHA/ HAZMAT - First Responder 

• Customer Service/ Report Writing 

• Active Shooter Training 

• Scenario-Based Training 

• Decision Mechanics Training 

• Supervisory Training Platforms 

• Career Development Training 

• Emergency Response/ Evacuation Preparedness 

• Client Safety Programs 

® SOSSecu rity· 
© 2018 SOS Security I Confidential I 3 
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TRAINING - CUSTOMER SERVICE SKILLS 

• Attitude of excellent service 

• Identifying customers needs 

• Thoughtful body language and words 

• Uncompromising service at every contact point 

• Resolving conflict 

• Exceeding customer expectations 

(I) SOSSec u rity® 
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EMPLOYEE RETENTION: INCENTIVE PROGRAM 

• Competitive Wages 

• Training 

• Performance Evaluations 

• Comprehensive Benefits - Offered to all 

• Incentive Programs 

• Officer of the Year Award 

• Officer of the Month Award 

• Referral Bonus 

• Loyalty Award based upon Longevity 

• Outstanding Achievement Award Merit Increases 

• Bonuses for Attendance and Performance 

• Promote from within (Career Path) 

• Work Environment 

• Hands-On Management Support 

• Advanced Education and Training Seminars 

® SOSSecu rity® 
© 2018 SOS Security I Confidential I 5 
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From: Rob Morison
To: Osorno-Belleme, Angela
Subject: RE: SOS Security LLC MTS 2018
Date: Tuesday, July 31, 2018 11:00:52 AM
Attachments: image001.png

Angela,
 
The chain of command is as follows.
 
Frankie Hammond
Director of Operations
 
Robert Morison
Regional Vice President – Florida
 
Rudy Diaz
SVP – Regional Director Southeast Operations
 

From: Osorno-Belleme, Angela [mailto:AOSORNOBELLEME@broward.org] 
Sent: Tuesday, July 31, 2018 10:52 AM
To: Rob Morison
Subject: RE: SOS Security LLC MTS 2018
 
Who will be the managerial employees of the operation at Port Everglades?
 

Angela Osorno Belleme, PMP
Franchise & Business Permit Manager
Broward County Port Everglades Department
1850 Eller Drive, Suite 603
Fort Lauderdale, FL 33316
Ph (954) 468-0112 Fx (954) 468-525-1910
aosornobellme@broward.org
www.broward.org
 

From: Rob Morison [mailto:rmorison@sossecurity.com] 
Sent: Tuesday, July 31, 2018 10:50 AM
To: Osorno-Belleme, Angela <AOSORNOBELLEME@broward.org>
Subject: RE: SOS Security LLC MTS 2018
 
Good morning Angela,
 
I anticipate the following headcount.
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1 Manager
4 Supervisors
20-24 Security Officers
 
Regards,
 
 
Robert Morison
Regional Vice President – Florida
SOS Security LLC

6360 NW 5th Way, Suite 203
Fort Lauderdale, FL 33309
561-939-1300
 
 
 

From: Osorno-Belleme, Angela [mailto:AOSORNOBELLEME@broward.org] 
Sent: Tuesday, July 31, 2018 9:37 AM
To: Rob Morison
Subject: RE: SOS Security LLC MTS 2018
 
Good morning, Rob.
 
Please send me the number of managers, supervisors and security officers that will be working
locally at Port Everglades.
 
Thanks,
 

Angela Osorno Belleme, PMP
Franchise & Business Permit Manager
Broward County Port Everglades Department
1850 Eller Drive, Suite 603
Fort Lauderdale, FL 33316
Ph (954) 468-0112 Fx (954) 468-525-1910
aosornobellme@broward.org
www.broward.org
 

From: Rob Morison [mailto:rmorison@sossecurity.com] 
Sent: Thursday, July 19, 2018 2:04 PM
To: Osorno-Belleme, Angela <AOSORNOBELLEME@broward.org>
Subject: RE: SOS Security LLC MTS 2018
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A. Selection and Profile of Staff 

1. The employee mix will be representative of SOS's Affirmative Action Program for sex, age and race. 
SOS certifies that it is an Equal Employment Opportunity Employer, and that all annual Equal 
Employment Opportunity reports have been filed. 

2. If applicable, all security personnel currently assigned to a Client account will be evaluated. 
Individuals, who continue to meet with SOS's and Client's qualifications, will be retained . 

3. The balance of the staff assigned to Client will be recruited through the following resources: 

a) Law enforcement (federal, state and municipal) or military Correction 
b) Fire, Correction and Emergency Medical Departments 
c) Military Organizations 
d) Social Media including our Webpage (www.sossecurity.com) 
e) Classified Advertising 
f) Bonus Incentive/Employee Referral programs for new applicants 
g) SOS's "Employment Search Placement Program" (ESP) 
h) Job Fairs 
i) Other organizations such as the Veterans' Administration, Kiwanis , Lions, Shriners, Elks and 

Rotary Clubs, etc. 
j) SOS also supports and is an active participant in the "Wounded Warrior Project's Warriors 

to Work "(WtoW)" Program; where we recruit disabled veterans for suitable employment 
opportunities. 

Our recruiting efforts are further enhanced by developing and maintaining relationships with 
various organizations in the security industry as well as, federal, state and municipal law 
enforcement organizations. 

B. Minimum Requirements of Personnel 

Each applicant shall : 

1. Possess the necessary state security guard license. 
2. Be capable of coherently communicating , reading and writing English . 
3. Have the necessary reading and writing skills to comprehend security procedures and post order, to 

write reports legibly and coherently, and complete forms. 
4. Demonstrate the ability to carry out mathematical functions , as it relates to the assignment. 
5. Maintain general knowledge of the site layout and access areas. 
6. Possess computer skills needed to carry out job functions. 
7. Be a citizen of the United States or alien legally eligible for employment under the United States 

Immigration Laws. 
8. Twenty-one (21) years of age or greater, based upon contract requirements. 
9. Have a high school education or general equivalence diploma. 

10. Not have been convicted of a felony crime or be the subject of any pending felony charges. 
11. Have unlimited access to reliable transportation and a valid private telephone number at which the 

individual can be reached during non-business hours. 

12. Be courteous, articulate, have the ability to use good judgment and work in a team environment. 

13. React calmly, quickly and efficiently while under stress in problem situations. 

14. Ability to follow prescribed methods and procedures. 

15. Sufficient organizational skills to complete daily administrative responsibilities. 

16. Ability to interact with all levels of management and other employees, internal and external. 

17. Maintain a degree of deportment, which will reflect favorably upon our clients . 

1 
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18. Complete the course of basic security training specified by SOS and Client. 

19. Possess supervisory skills, as required. 
20. Ability to work flexible hours. 

C. Medical and Physical Requirements 

1. All SOS applicants, prior to employment, are required to submit to and pass a drug-screening test. 

2. An SOS employee will not be assigned to Client if he/she has health problems that could adversely 
affect their ability to perform or to meet specified minimum standards. 

3. All SOS applicants must be physically capable of performing all duties assigned, and at a minimum, 
meet the following physical requirements: 

a) Binocular vision, correctable to 20/30 (Snellen) and a keen sense of smell. 

b) Ability to discriminate between standard colors. 

c) Capability of hearing ordinary conversation at 20 feet and whispered conversation at 10 feet. 

4. All SOS employees must be able to perform normal or emergency duties requiring moderate to 
arduous exertion such as: 

a) Standing or walking for an entire eight (8) hour shift. 

b) Climbing six (6) stories of stairs and ladders unimpeded. 

c) Lifting and carrying objects weighing up to fifty (50) pounds (i.e., fire extinguishers). 

d) Running short distances. 

e) Unarmed self-defense or in defense of others and client's site. 

D. Personnel Documentation and Certification 

1. SOS will maintain complete and current files for all persons assigned under this contract, including 
proof of successfully completing all registration/licensing requirements, as per applicable state 
regulations. Such files shall be made available to Client upon request during normal business hours. 

2. Personnel files will include at minimum: 

a) New Hire Procedures Check List. 

b) Signed employment application to include a signed release to conduct background 
investigations and a statement by the applicant permitting release of all information to the 
client. 

c) Copy of identity verification. 

d) Copy of education record. 

e) Completed background investigation. 

f) Dates and results of all screening examinations and certifications, where applicable. 

g) Employee Profile. 

h) Color photographs 

i) Verification and copy of required state guard license/registration card . 

j) Evaluation and/or disciplinary records 

2 
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k) Record of salary, benefits, and other compensation . 

I) Signed SOS Confidentiality Non-Disclosure Agreement. 

m) Fingerprint cards. 

n) Records of all training and testing. 

), PRE-EMPLOYMENT SCREENING 

A. Initial screening will be conducted at SOS's branch office where each candidate prepares an 
Application for Employment (if not already submitted electronically) prior to a formal interview with the 
Human Resources Department. 

B. During the interview, the personnel specialist reviews the application with the candidate. Evaluations 
are based on the following areas: 

o Appearance and demeanor 
o Expression and communications 
o Job knowledge and general experience 
o Motivation 
o Personality 

The personnel specialist will then complete an Interview Report, which will be maintained in SOS's 
files as part of the candidate's permanent record . 

C. Further screening and interviewing will be conducted and the following procedures will then be 
implemented. 

1. Fingerprint cards and required State forms are prepared and submitted to the appropriate law 
enforcement authorities who will then in turn investigate the candidate for any prior criminal 
record . 

2. Drug Screening: In accordance with SOS's Substance Abuse Policy , prior to any candidate 
being assigned to provide security services at any client site location, SOS shall perform a 10-
panel drug-screening test for controlled substances. The results will be reviewed and evaluated 
in a highly confidential manner. Any positive finding on the basis of the drug screening will 
require the sample to be tested by an independent laboratory for a gross confirmatory test 
(serum). Any positive finding (urine and/or serum test) will automatically disqualify an applicant 
for employment or assignment to any client location. 

3. Background verification requirements includes, but are not limited to: 

a) Social Security Number verifications will be conducted and documented. 
b) County criminal records search in all counties that candidate lived or worked in the past 7 

year period . (Statewide checks in lieu of county are acceptable where available, provided 
the same data is covered) . 

c) State criminal records search, if available (7 year search) . 
d) Federal criminal records search (per State). 
e) National criminal records search: General database search (all 50 states) . 
f) A national Sexual Offenders registry check will be performed and documented . 
g) A state Sexual Offenders registry check will be performed and documented . 
h) Office of Foreign Assets Control (OFAC). 
i) General Services Administration (GSA). 
j) Education verification - highest level indicated. 
k) Employment verification - all previous employers for prior five (5) years. 
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I) A military service check will be conducted and documented. 
m) Previous residential address check covering the past three (3) years will be performed and 

documented. 
n) Three (3) reference checks will be performed and documented. 
o) Department of Motor Vehicle check will be performed and documented, if applicable. 
p) E-Verify Compliant Proof of U.S. citizenship (1-9), with certain exceptions for approved 

immigrants. 

Any adverse findings will be reviewed where SOS reserves the right to reject any applicant. 

E. Training / Certification 

At SOS we hold training paramount to the success of our operations at each client site. Recognizing that 
each client's operation is unique to their facility, our standard training program will be matched against 
those needs and tailored to their environment. If standard operating procedures are in place, we will 
review and make recommendations as necessary. If none are in place, we will provide a working copy to 
the client as soon as practical. Our standard training curriculum is as follows: 

o SOS orientation 

o Client pre-assignment training 

o Site specific training 
> Procedural review; operating procedures, access control , visitors , etc. 
> Reporting procedures 
> Emergency procedures 
> Safety and first aid 
> Legal issues 

o On-the-job training 

o Incident reporting procedures 

o Recurring training as needed, or by contract 

As a need arises or at the clients request, additional training can be provided. Under the direction of the 
Senior VP-Training, SOS has assembled a staff of trainers whose collective experience spans all aspects 
of security with backgrounds ranging from certified training instructors, Certified Protection Professionals, 
personnel specialists and former law enforcement and military officers. What this provides our clients is 
our ability to meet any training need with tangible, flexible solutions. 

Some additional training needs that may be recognized: 
> CPR training/first-aid/AED 

> Specialized bomb threat training 

> OSHA training 

> CFATS training 

>'" TIPS training 

> CLSO training 

>'" Bloodbourne Pathogens training 

> Fire Safety training 

>" Customer Service training 
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TECHNOLOGY 

Information is one of the most Important assets of this Company. SOS is entrusted with 
many sensitive bits of information from pass codes and keys to executive schedules and 
locations. It is essential that we keep both SOS's and our clients' information private and 
secure. In today's world of computers, internet, mobile and smart phones, privacy 
becomes a critical issue. Our Company's reputation and trust is on the line every day in 
this regard. Our policies on information are simple. Everyone is responsible for ensuring 
the privacy of both SOS's and our client's information. Below are the individual policies 
every employee must follow in order to protect such information. 

Computers: SOS's and client computers are to be used solely for the purpose of 
business between SOS and its employees and clients. Never use any SOS or client 
computer for sending personal e-mail, downloading software, music or any other non­
business applications. SOS computers are preset with the tools needed to work at SOS 
and employees should never install any software without the express written permission 
from the IT Department or the Chief Financial Officer. 

Internet: SOS's computers are generally connected to the internet in order to receive 
important information via e-mail or from the SOS website. Use of the internet for non­
business purposes is against the Company's policy. Anyone found using an SOS 
computer to view pornographic or other inappropriate materials will be subject to 
disciplinary action up to and including termination of employment. · 

Phones: SOS does not allow the use of any client phone for personal use. SOS's 
phones, including mobile and smart phones, are for business purposes only. Unless 
there is an emergency, personal calls are not to be made from any SOS telephone. 
Please conduct personal calls and text messaging only on break or lunch periods from 
your personal phone or pay phone. Personal phones may not be used on duty, except 
for SOS or client business related calls. 

Monitoring and Usage Prohibitions: Our Company's policies against sexual and 
other types of harassment apply fully to the e-mail, voicemail and internet systems. 
Violations of those policies are not permitted and may result in disciplinary action, up to 
and including discharge. Therefore, employees are also prohibited from accessing 
pornographic websites, displaying or transmitting sexually-explidUmages or messages, 
ethnic slurs, racial epithets or anything that could be construed as harassment or 
disparaging .. to others. 

Employees shall not use unauthorized codes o"r passwords to gain access to other user's 
files and/or accounts. 

All client e-mail and voicemail passwords must be made available to the Company at a:11 
times. Employees are strictly prohibited from changing these passwords or adding any 
additional passwords or other ways of restricting access to client equipment Employees 
are also prohibited from installing or downloading any software on to either Company or 
client equipment. 

Violation of this poflcy may result in disciplinary action, up to and including discharge. 

For business purposes, management reserves the right to enter, search and/or monitor 
the Company's private e-mail, voicemail and internet systems and the files/transmissions 
of any employee without advance notice·and consistent with applicable State and Federal 
laws. Employees should expect that communications they send and receive through the 
Company's e-mail and voicemail systems will be disclosed to management. Employees 
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should not assume that communications that they send and receiv.e.:through the 
Company's private e-mail, voicemail and internet systems are private or confidential. 

SOCIAL AND PROFESSIONAL NETWORK/NG 

Social Media Usage 

Social media encompasses a broad array of online activity. These activities include, but 
are not limited to, using or participating in social or professional networking sites, such as 
Facebook, MySpace, and Linkedln, posting or revleWing content on video-sharing sites, 
such as YouTube, creating "wikis", and authoring or commenting on biogs and micro­
blogs, such as Twitter ("Social Media"). 

SOS recognizes and respects that it is your individual decision to engage in social media 
activities outside of company time on your own personal equipment. However, it is 
important for you to be careful with communications that may impact the Company or our 
employees, even if you make the communications in your personal capacity. It is the 
right and duty of the Company to protect its employees and itself from, among other 
things, unauthorized disclosures of confidential proprietary information and posts or 
comments that could violate Federal, state, and/or local laws. To ensure that SOS and its 
employees adhere to their ethical and legal obligations, employees are required to 
comply with these Social and Professional Networking Guidelines. Our intent is not to 
restrict the flow of useful and appropriate information, but to minimize the risk to the 
Company and its employees. · 

The Company has put together the following list of Do's and Don'ts for issues that may 
be raised by social networking and other aspects of life onllne. Although the guidelines 
set forth below may not cover every situation, they provide guidance. Employees are 
expected to use their best judgment while engaging in Social Media activities. 
Furthermore, the Company's policies, including the principles set forth in the Company's 
Equal Employment Opportunity,_ Harassment and other applicable policies apply to your 
on line presence and communications if they relate to the Company's, its employees', its 
properties', its products or services, its vendors', rts distributors', or its related affiliates' 
reputation and legal standing - even if you are engaging in these actiVities outside of the 
office or on a personal phone or computer. As discussed In the Company's Technology 
Policy, the Company reserves the right to monitor comments or discussions about the 
Company, its employees, clients, and the industry, including products and competitors, 
posted on the Internet by anyone, including employees and non-employees. 

VVHAT YOU SHOULD DO: 

• Act responsibly. Think before you act or post and use common sense. You are 
responsible for the content you publish on biogs, wikis or any other form of user­
generated media internally and externally, including, but not limited to, Facebook, 
MySpace, Unkedln, YouTube, and Twitter. Be mindful: what you publish will be public 
for a long time, and what you do and say may be viewed by your co-wo~kers. This 
includes all postings that you may participate in, whether you. originate, support, "like" 
and/or add comments. When posting, refrain from using vulgar language, posting 
references to illegal drugs, posting explicit sexual references, or posting obscene, 
derogatory, threatening, intimidating, harassing or otherwise inappropriate material 
(such as libelous comments about SOS services or products or a competitors' 
employees, products or services) that could injure the Company's reputation or legal 
standing or that could violate the Company's policies against discrimination or 
harassment based on a protected class. 
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• ~be~ ~e ~aw. Respect privacy, copyright, trademark, libel, defamation, employment 
d1scnmmat1on and other laws. 

• Exercis~ discretion when adding "friends." The process of connecting by Inviting or 
respo~d1ng to a co-~orker's "frie~d·. ~equest can often be awkward or create feelings of 
eJ<:Clus1on a~d coercion. Before inviting a co-worker to connect with you online ask: Is 
this connection. appropriate? 

• Use good judgment. Ensure that your profiles and postings are consistent with how 
you would present yourself to co-workers, vendors, or distributors. 

• Be Respectful. Keep good taste in mind at all times. 

• When in doubt, ask. Jf you are not sure about certain conduct, contact your 
supervisor or a manager or a human resources representative. 

WHAT YOU SHOULD NOT DO: 

• E~gage in social media a?fi~ities for business purposes on behalf of the Company 
without the express perm1ss1on of the President or Chief Executive Officer of the 
Company. 

• Engage in social me_dia activities for personal purposes while on company time. 

• P?st photos taken in th~ Companys_ or Client's workplace or in the Company's uniform 
wrthout the express written perm1ss1on of President or Chief Executive Officer of the 
Company. 

• Use social m~di~ to harass, threaten, defame, libel, or discriminate against co-workers 
c~sto_mers, d1str1butors, and the like in violation of federal, state, and/or local laws or i~ 
vrolat1on of the Company's policies. 

• ~se ethnic slurs, personal insults, or obscenity or engage in other conduct that would 
violate the Company's policies, including the policy against harassment. 

• Rev7al ~ersonal!Y identifiable information (e.g., social security #'s, home addresses, 
medical information, and so forth) about others. 

• Disclose, post, or refer to any confidentfal, proprietary, or embargoed information of or 
about the ~ompany, its clients, distributors, or its vendors, including, but not limited to, 
customer hs~s, business.and financial information, pending business transactions, sales 
and marketing stra~eg1e~, manuf~cturing processes and procedures, intellectual 
property such as designs, ideas, or rnnovations, and company-issued documents. 

• Repre~ent that you are commun_icating '.he views of the Company or submit postings 
that might reason_ably create the 1mpress1on that you are communicating on behalf of or 
as a representatwe of the Company without the express permission of President or 
CEO of the Company. 

• Use Company -owned equipment - including computers, hand-held electronic devices, 
comp~ny-licens.ed software ?r other electronic equipment - to conduct personal 
bloggrng or social and professional networking activities. 
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Nothing in these Social and Professional Networking Guidelines _is_ il)tended to proh_lblt ?r 
infringe upon an employee's rights under the National Labor Relations Act, the Cal1forn1a 
Labor Code, or any other federal or state statute protecting employee workplace rights. 

WHEN IN D0Ul3T, ASK BEFORE YOU ACT: 

It is impossible to list all forms of online behavior that may raise concerns or potentially 
injure the Company's reputation or legal standing. If you are not sure if certain conduct 
online is appropriate or legal, please consult with the Senior Vice President of Human 
Resources. 

REPORTING VIOLATIONS: 

If you become aware of any violations of this policy, report them immedi~tely '.o your 
manager or the Senior Vice President of Human Resources. Violations include 
discussions of the Company's or its clients' confidential, proprietary, or embargoed 
information and any unlawful activity related to blogging or social networking. 

The Company investigates and responds to all reports of violations of the Company's 
Socia[ and Professional Networking Guidelines and other related policies. 

Users who violate the Company's Social Networking Guidelines may be subject to 
discipline, up to and including termination of employment, so we ask that you take these 
matters seriously. 

The Company reserves the right to take legal action where necessary against employees 
· who engage in prohibited or unlawful conduct. 

STANDARDS OF CONDUCT 

As an employee of SOS, it is expected that you will act in accordance with all Local, State 
and Federal laws. Further, each employee has an obligation to comply with the 
Company's policies and client requests, and to maintain proper standards of conduc_t at 
aH times. If an employee's conduct interferes with the ComP.any's orderly and efficient 
operation, corrective discipnnary measures will be taken up to and including termination. 

Every employee of the Company must real!Ze that (s)he not only. represents the 
company, but all security companies, all secunty officers and the security industry as a 
whole. An officer who takes pride in his or her uniform makes it a point to be attentive to 
his or her surroundings and to look like a first rate security officer who wm be viewed as a 

, professional. 

The following requirements are important in order to maintain a positive working 
environment for all personnel: 

1. Failure to report for duty without proper notification is grounds for termi~ation in mo~t 
cases. Officers are requested to notify the SOS office ten (10) business days m 
advance of all scheduled absences. In the case of an emergency·or serious illness, 
four (4) hours notice, if possible, is mandatory. Rep7ated absenteeism or t~rdi_nes~ 
will.be documented and can result in demotion, reassignment and even termination if 
improvement is not evident. 

2. A!I injuries, accidents, thefts and other incidents must_be reported to your supervisor 
immediately. An SOS Incident Report and other pertrnent forms must be completed 
and filed within twenty-four (24) hours of the occurrence. 
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3. Officers are required to sign in on the timesheet when starting their shift and in some 
cases may also be required to call into an automated system. At the end of the shift, 
officers are required to sign out on the timesheets and may also be required to call 
into an automated system. If you arrive to work early, you may not perform any work 
until your scheduled shift time, unless requested by your manager, at which time you 
are required to sign in and can in before starting work. Under no circumstances are 
employees permitted to perform any work prior to signing in or after signing out. No 
one, Including an SOS manager or client can authorize you to perform any work 
before or after signing out. Any requests to do so must be immediately reported to the 
Senior Vice President of Human Resources. In addition, employees must also sign in 
and out on the timesheet at those locat!ons with non-paid meal breaks. 

4. An officer who is absent for more than two (2) consecutive days without notifying the 
Company shaH be considered to have voluntarily quit his or her employment with 
SOS, which may adversely affect the officer's re-hire status or ability to qualify for 
State unemployment benefits. 

5. All sick !eave beyond two (2) consecutive work days requires a doctor's release before 
returning to work, 

6. Three (3) unexcused absences within a six (6) month period may result in disciplinary 
action up to and including termination. An unexcused absence is any absence that 
was not scheduled and approved in advancf:;\. 

7. AH officers must adhere to the dress code for his or her work environment. No 
deviations from a standard uniform are allowed without prior management approval. 

8. An officer must never complain, argue or share SOS's proprietary information with a 
cnent or any employee or customer of the client. All grievances and issues must be 
directed through the SOS Chain of Command, 

9. Fighting on the client's property for any other reason than self-defense is grounds for 
immediate dismissal. 

10. Reporting for duty while under the influence of non-prescription drugs or alcohol is 
grounds for immediate dismissaL Officera taking prescription medications that may 
impair their abmty to operate machinery or vehicles must notify Human Resources 
before reporting for work and may be asked for a doctor's note listing any limitations. 

11. An officer must wear his/her badge and uniform while on duty and is prohibited from 
wearing it outside the workplace, except to commute to and from the workplace. Any 
misrepresentation regarding use of the badge or uniform is grounds for dismissal and 
even arrest. Knowledge of the law concerning "Color of Authority" is mandatory. 

12. An officer must not use the client's telepho.ne or other equipment unless instructed to 
doso. 

13. Officers are prohibited from fraternizing or becoming personally involved with the 
client, employees of the client, or anyone regularly associated with the client's 
location. SOS is hired to protect the employees and assets of clients. Any personal 
relationship could distract an officer from an officer's duties and result in a potentiaHy 
disastrous outcome. Officers are expected to treat all people the same at clients' 
locations. 

14. Officers must not accept gratuities or ask for special favors from a client or its 
employees. Failure to comply with this policy could jeopardize an officer's position, 
as well as the credibility of the Company. 

15. Officers must become completely familiar with their post-specific instructions, the 
client's site and general post orders. Officers must also know the Powers of Arrest 
procedures, including arrest and detention requirements. 
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Page 2, Section A.1 - Officers. Please provide documentation for the appointment of Thomas 
Gustafson as Chief Financial Officer. 

Please see Attachment A, which reflects a redacted signed copy of Mr. Gustafson 's Offer 
letter from SOS Security. Please advise if further information is required. 

Page 4, Section F - Business History. Describe the company's previous business history, 
including length of time providing marine terminal security services. 

Please see Attachment B, SOS' Statement of Capabilities brochure. Please advise if 
further information is required. 

Page 5, Section H - Ports of Service. You stated in the appl ication that SOS Security LLC, 
does not provide security services at any other port. If this is not correct, please provide the 
names of the ports where you provide security services and the names of clients and length of 
service. 

SOS apologies for the incorrect statement. SOS has provided (for less than one year) 
security services at the following ports for: 

• Crowley Logistics - 1163 Talleyrand Ave., Jacksonville, Florida 32206 
• Crowley Logistics - Petty's Island, 361

h Street & Delaware River, Pennsauken, NJ 
08110 

• SpaceX - 2700 Miner Street, San Pedro, CA 90731 
• SpaceX- 801 Reeves Avenue, San Pedro, CA 90731 

Page 6, Section J - Insurance Certificate. The Certificate of Insurance provided expired on 
June 4, 2018. Please provide an updated certificate. 

Please see Attachment C. This is SOS' Evidence of Insurance COi. The first is an 
extention COi (through June 8, 2018) as well as the renewal certificate (June 8, 2018-
June 4, 2019). 

Page 8, Section P.1 - Safety Program. Please provide a copy of your safety manual. 

Please see Attachment D. 

Page 1 O, Section N.1, 2, 3, & 4 - Security Equipment. Please provide a list of all security 
equipment, a copy of all manufacturers recommended service intervals and name of company 
contracted to provide services on equipment's and include description of current method to 
assure all equipment's are properly calibrated and functioning . If your company operates an x­
ray equipment, please list training req uirements and training syllabus for employees. Provide 
Equipment Operator certificates, if any. If you do not use security equipment as described in 
this section , please indicate "None". 

None. 
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d. Provide what are your hiring requirements for supervisors. 

In addition to meeting the requirements mentioned in Attachment F, all supervisors must: 
• Have a proven track record in managing staff at a supervisory level. 
• Be able to take responsibility for all security details operating on site as well as 

providing one 's own vigilance to ensure safe/secure operations. 
• Perform additional duties including, but not limited to: 

o Accountable for day to day supervision of officers in their respective shift 
o Supervise and monitor all activity associated with Client's security control 

centers to include CCTV, Access Control and Alarm Response (as 
applicable) . 

o Ensure all security staff adhere to Client 's post orders and execute their 
duties as directed. 

o Ensure accuracy and completeness of all incident reports . 
o Report any and all security related incidents as dictated by Client 's security 

policy and procedures. 
o Conduct patrols, ensuring all is secure and validate daily staffing needs 

through supervisory post checks. 

e. Provide present policy for individual communication devices. 

Please refer to Attachment G, extracted from SOS' Employee Handbook re: Technology 
and Social Media policies. 

Page 13 - Signature. The signatory on the application shall be registered with the State of 
Florida, Divisions of Corporations as an officer of the company. Rodolfo Diaz does not appear 
as a registered Agent. Please provide authorization for Mr. Diaz to legally bind the company or 
submit the application signed by a registered Agent. 

Please refer to Attachment H. Kenneth M. Fisher, President of SOS Security LLC, has 
provided authorization for Mr. Diaz to legally bind the company. 
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